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2018

14,275,848 55.20

11,909,399 46.05

23,494,347 90.85

25,860,796
100.00
( 2,828
2018 27
109.35
2018

()
19,500 919,676.90|  47.16 923,887.97 47.38 3.57
20,000 459,394.18 22.97 515,405.28 25.77 1.99
51,300 464,415.33 9.05 508,629.55 9.91 1.97
9,200 463,652.30 50.40 497,313.50 54.06 1.92
42,700 458,893.13 10.75 492,881.10 11.54 1.91
19,600 474,457.88 24.21 481,343.71 24.56 1.86
49,000 461,702.57 9.42 472,828.32 9.65 1.83
26,200 464,305.51 17.72 471,967.63 18.01 1.83
26,100 459,134.39 17.59 471,837.29 18.08 1.82
10 17,000 463,220.50 27.25 470,669.74 27.69 1.82
11 27,600 467,435.48 16.94 469,292.28 17.00 1.81
12 21,200 461,832.52 21.78 468,088.60 22.08 1.81
13 45,400 455,795.13 10.04 467,987.99 10.31 1.81
14 11,000 469,798.36|  42.71 467,441.03 42.49 1.81
15 38,100 462,277.80 12.13 463,480.59 12.16 1.79
16 23,300 467,719.44 20.07 463,308.64 19.88 1.79
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17 68,500 468,427.87 6.84 459,375.65 6.71 1.78
18 10,900 465,588.31 42.71 453,620.67 41.62 1.75
19 35,300 456,203.68 12.92 452,827.21 12.83 1.75
20 10,300 458,110.73 44 .48 442,593.65 42.97 1.71
21 16,600 463,406.32 27.92 388,082.34 23.38 1.50
22 5,700 314,871.55 55.24 332,100.27 58.26 1.28
23 | FRONTEO 37,600 265,109.55 7.05 298,856.40 7.95 1.16
24 10,800 280,572.68 25.98 289,629.41 26.82 1.12
25 5,800 289,742.52 49.96 286,468.38 49.39 1.11
26 18,000 272,762.94 15.15 285,480.56 15.86 1.10
Wismettac
27 6,600 260,501.96 39.47 273,462.06 41.43 1.06
28 21,500 267,657.95 12.45 269,213.51 12.52 1.04
29 14,900 272,310.62 18.28 212,056.11 14.23 0.82
30 7,000 190,062.15 27.15 199,759.56 28.54 0.77
2018
2018
2016 2016
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
2018
(2016 12 31 ) 27,370,271 2,992,939 100,748,809 9,803¢
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(2017 12 31 ) 28,676,802 3,135,808 204,285,382 10,384¢ )
2017 28,675,618 3,135,679 164,710,749 9,880
27,896,948 3,050,531 161,631,112 9,638
27,808,931 3,040,907 161,406,202 9,624
28,026,232 3,064,669 171,730,831 9,720
27,736,665 3,033,004 167,273,598 9,857
10 28,436,777 3,109,562 171,155,035 10,092
11 28,802,449 3,149,548 197,940,147 10,106
12 28,676,802 3,135,808 204,285,382 10,383¢ )
2018 29,117,899 3,184,042 203,263,742 10,264
27,157,026 2,969,621 189,178,861 9,849
25,856,089 2,827,363 191,421,560 9,473
25,860,796 2,827,878 197,285,518 9,574

A2 S AEFEERERS £ U O3 D OFEEBEBOHES

ZH6FSR 1817 S EDERMEE -~ 201 SFE47E]

] 201 8F 4 FFEIE | 1 (U ORRE 559,577 - SERE R 197 285 5185 ()
11.000 .
75 R EFFTR R (1)
10,500 | = P75 AE DA ORRR SR (5K ]
10,000 4
9,500 3
9,000 2
B.500 1
8,000 ; : :
201659815 2017685 12A% 2016 4R%
QSO ORESET. BrOSSEsRs THES A ENEERL TV T, HUSE
i - LA 15 e, S ML e Ch SR A
BEI-T SBEES | SO R RS, SR
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00 . . ) L7E0. 2016 DLTHt. SRS
1.07% (10,000
5 #2) &E12BF0 OSTURRASE. SERATS
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10.0 7.0 RS T TSR SN T T —A. &
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20,178 9,994 10,184
20,178 9,994 10,184
*
10,787 1,302 19,669
*
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OFAC
« )
OFAC http://www.treas.gov/ofac
« D
©) (1) 1933
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2017 12 31
2017 12 31
81,458 8,907
3 24,281,900 2,655,226
21,557,120
4 10,872,770 1,188,937
31,151 3,406
20,957 2,292
35,288,236 3,858,769
3 5,364,231 586,579
5,088,486
3 376,344 41,153
12,806 1,400
180,735 19,763
197,166 21,560
4 35,183 3,847
6 359,501 39,311
6 41,784 4,569
41,000 4,483
2,684 293
6,611,434 722,960
28,676,802 3,135,808
1,592.1417 1,655.024 180,977
100.0000 1,654.620 180,933
1,411.4831 1,200.254 131,248
6,880.6863 159,290
3,663.1001 159,683
269,056.806 1445534
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362,500.087

1.305970

19,669 10,384
2017 12 31

54,534 234,212 25,611

56 6

249 27

234,517 25,644

1,914,777 209,381

6 480,634 52,557

73,684 8,057

62,314 6,814

31,129 3,404

6 354,858 38,804

65,380 7,149

54,113 5,917

3,036,889 332,084

(2,802,372) (306,439)

2,838,989 310,443

(297,983) (32,584)

2,601,187 284,440

(510,429) (55,815)

58/214



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

42,696 4,669
4,674,460 511,152
1,872,088 204,713

2017 12 31
(2,802,372) (306, 439)
4,674,460 511,152
1,872,088 204,713
1,021,821 111,736
1,007,091 110,125
360,000 39,366
(2,952,899) (322,900)
(1,570) (172)
(1,587,378) (173,580)
1,306,531 142,869
27,370,271 2,992,939
28,676,802 3,135,808
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2017 12 31

1,872,088 204,713
1,021,821 111,736
2,893,909 316,449
(67,644,291) (7,396,903)
64,978,570 7,105,407
90,708,790 9,919,006
(88,873,494) (9,718,317)
(2,838,989) (310, 443)
(2,601,187) (284,440)
510,429 55,815
5,640,769 616,818
558 61

2,486 272
(1,742,649) (190,559)
359,501 39,311
3,412 373
5,000 547

169 18

29,524 3,228
1,432,507 156,645
982,729 107,461
(2,775,825) (303,536)
12,806 1,400
(2,191) (240)
(1,782,481) (194,914)
(349,974) (38,270)
431,432 47,177
81,458 8,907
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234,770 25,672
74,220 8,116
63,884 6,986
42 5
2017 12 31
2011 12 19
2012
2011 12 19
190
KY1-9007
FASB ASC
GAAP usb

Us$

GAAP
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ASC 740
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50

50

ASC 480 ASC 480
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FASB ASC 820 ASC 820

ASC 820

ASC 820

ASC 820
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820
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2017 12 31 ASC 820
24,281,900 24,281,900
5,364,231 5,364,231
12,643 12,643
363,701 363,701
2017 12 31
2017 12 31 10,872,770
35,183
5,724,886
10
nine( ) 10
1,000
100,000

10,000

64/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1
oM
45
2017 12 31
1,592.8090 100.0000 1,100.734 7,545.9383
309.399
(665.1359)
(0.6673) 1.350 (0.1161)
1,592.1417 100.0000 1,411.483 6,880.6863
4,454 .6771 292,705,579 396,887,157 10,184
4,449,309 10,787
(791.5770)  (27,883,718)  (34,338,793) (1,292)
(214,364) (48,277) (10)
3,663.1001 269,056,806 362,500,087 19,669
1.5 12 b 1.9 12
c 12 d
2.5 12 e 12
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2017 12 31 480,634 41,784

20

25

354,858

2017 12 31 7,021
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« ) « ) « )
(522,867) 42,827 (480,040)
12,438 (150,241) (137,803)
(190,569) (190,569)
18,501,447 117
4,444,958
363,701 363,701
12,643 12,643
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2017 12 31

1,521 1,527 1,111 147,898
@72) (296) (196) (14,262)
406 424 285 25,654
1,655 1,655 1,200 159,290
8.79 8.36 8.07 7.70
8.79 8.36 8.07 7.70
(10.97) (11.40) (11.90) (10.32)
(10.97) (11.40) (11.90) (10.32)
(10.14) (10.58) (11.07) (9.48)
148,657 1.348524 1.218957 9,893
(16,503) (0.139167) (0.128706) (1,137)
27,529 0.236177 0.215719 1,628
159,683 1.445534 1.305970 10,384
7.42 7.23 7.14 4.96
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7.42 7.23 7.14 4.96
(10.49) (10.78) (10.81) (13.25)
(10.49) (10.78) (10.81) (13.25)
(9.67) (9.95) (9.98) (12.42)
2014 FASB
1ASB
GAAP
2018 12 15
2016 FASB ASU 2016-01 825-10
ASU 2016-01 ASU 2016-01
)
)
)
)
)
)
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)
)
2018 12 15 2019 12 15
12
2017 12 31 13,025 197,919
2018
2018 29
2017 12 31
4,194,525 14.63
1,244,241 4.34
3,533,535 12.32
582,843 2.03
7,671,593 26.75
4,469,924 15.59
2,404,132 8.38
181,107 0.63
21,557,120 24,281,900 84.67

(963,652) (3.36)
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(144,525) (0.50)
(184,820) (0.64)

(407,718) (1.42)

(1,657,944) (5.78)

(1,372,187) (4.79)

(144,926) (0.51)

(85,294) (0.30)

(403,165) (1.41)

5,088,486 5,364,231 (18.71)
(363,701) 1.27)

(12,643) (0.04)

(376,344) (1.31)
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2017

MNotes Uss
Assets
Cash and cash eqguivalents 81,458
Investments in securities, at fair value {cost | USE21,5567,120) 3 24 281,800
Amounts due from broker 4 10,872 770
Dividends receivable 31,151
Other asseats 20857
Total assets 36,286,236
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased, at fair value (proceeds:

USEHS, 088 486) 3 5,364,231
Derivative contracts, at fair value 3 375,344
Subscriptions received in advance 12 BOG
Other payables and accrued expenses 180,735
Redemption payable 197,166
Amounts due to broker 4 35,183
Performance fee payable B 359,501
Management fee payable & 41,784
Professional fee payable 41,000
Administration fee payable 2 664
Total liabilities 6,611 434
Net assets 28 876,802
Net asset value (“NAV™) per participating units

USD Class A based on 1,592.1417 units outstanding 1,655.024

USD Class B based on 100.0000 units cutstanding 1,654,620

USD Class D based on 1,411.4831 units outstanding 1,200.254

JPY Class A based on 6, 8806863 units outstanding 158 290

JPY Class B based on 3,663.1001 units outstanding 158 GB3

JPY Class C based on 269,056 806 units outstanding 1445534

JPY Class D based on 362 500 087 units outstanding 1.305970

JPY Class E based on 19 669 units outstanding 10,384

The accompanying accounting policies and expianatory information form an integral part of the financial
statements.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of operations

For the year ended December 31, 2017

MNotes UsS§
Investment income
Dividend, net of withholding taxes of US354,534 234212
Intarest income 56
Other income 249
Total investment income 234517
Expenses
Stock loan fees 18914777
Management fee G 480,634
Dividend expense 73684
Professional fee 62,314
Administration fee 31,129
Performance fee G 354 BEE
Intzrest expense 65, 380
Other expense 54,113
Total expenses 3.036 889
Met investmeant expense (2,802 372)
Gain on investments and foreign currency transactions
Met realised gain on investments in securities 2,838 089
Met realisad gain on derivative transactions (297 983)
Met change in unrealised loss on Investments in securities 2 601 187
Net change in unrealised gain on denvative transactions (510,429
Met loss on foreign currency ransactions 42 696
Met gain cn investments and foreign currency transactions 4 674 480
Met change in net assets resulting from operations 1,872,088

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an infegral part of he financial
statements.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of changes in net assets

For the year ended December 31, 2017

LSS
Operations
Met investment expense (2,802 372)
Met gain on investments and foreign curency transactions 4 674 460
Met change in net assets resulting from operations 1,872 088
Unrealised appreciation on translation of assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies
Forelgn currency translations 1,021,821
Capital transactions
Subscription of JPY units 1,007,091
Subscription of USD units 360,000
Redermption of JPY units {2,952,899)
Met movement for share egualisation (1.570)
Met increase in net assets resulting from capital transactions {1,587 378)
Met increase in net assets for the year 1,306 531
MNet assets at beginning of year 27,370,271
Met assets at end of year 28,676 802

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial
statemenis.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended December 31, 2017

S
Cash flows from operating activities
Mat change in net assets resulting from operations 1,872,088
Adjustment for foreign currency translations 1,021,821
Met change in net assets resulling from aperations after adjustment for foreign currency
franslations 2,893 908
Adjustments 1o reconcile net change in net assets resulting from operations to net cash
generated from operating activities:
Furchases of investments in secunilies (57, 644,291)
Proceads from sales from investments in securities 64,978,570
FProceeds from securities sold, not yet purchased 90,708,790
PFurchase to cover securities sold, not yet purchased (B8,.873 404)
el realised gain on iveslimants in securities (2,838,889)
Net change in unrealized loss on investmenis in securties (2,601,18T)
Change in assels and liabilities
Denvative contracts, at fair value, net 510,429
Amounts due from broker 5,640,765
Dividends receivable 558
Other azzets 2485
Amounts due fo broker (1,742 649
Ferformance fee payable 358,501
Management fee payable 3412
Frofessional fee payable 5,000
Administration fee payable 16a
Other payables and accrued expenses 28,524
Met cash flows generated from operating activities 1,432 507
Cash flows from financing activities
Froceeads from subscription of units Q82 729
Payments of redemption of units (2,775,825)
Subscriptions received in advance 12,806
Fayment of parformance fee redemption (2,191)
Met cash flows used in financing activities (1,782 .481)
Met change in cash and cash equivalents (345 574
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 431,432
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 81,458
Supplamental disclosures of cash flows information
Dividends received 234 770
Dividends paid 74220
Interest paid 63,684
Interest received 42

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory infarmation form an integral part of the financial
statements.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Corporate information

Shin-Ka Fund (the "Fund") was incorporated as an exempted Trust in the Cayman Islands on
December 19, 2011 and commenced operations on February 1, 2012,

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Ogier Trustees (Cayman) Limited) (the
"Trustee"), a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman, acts as Trustee of the Fund.
Pursuant to the Trust Deed dated Decamber 19, 2011, the Trustee has overall authority and
responsibility for the management and administration of the Fund.

The Trustee has delzgated the investment management responsibilities to Gordian Capital
Singapore Privale Limited (the "Investment Manager"), a private limited company incorporated
in Singapore. The Investment Manager has appointed Darwin Capital Partners, Inc. {the
"Investment Advisor'), a company Incorporated in Japan, to act as investment advisor in
respect of the Fund.

The Fund's principal investment objective is to deliver superior risk-adjusted abselute retums
with low correlation to market indices in Japan. Rather than seeking to cutperform a
benchmark, the Fund seeks to implement a fundamental long and short positions primarily in
the equity securities of Japanese companies combined with an event driven strateqgy to achieve
superior absolute retums by capitalising on mispriced securities. The Fund may also invest in
debt securities, converiible bonds, futures and derivative instrumenis.

The registerad office of the Fund is located at the office of Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited, 190
Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY|-9007, Cayman Islands.

The Trustee appointed Porteullis Trust (Singapore) Ltd (the "Administrator”) as the Fund's
Adrministrator,

The Trustee appointed Nomura International ple as the Fund's prime broker and custodian.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Fund are presented using accouniing
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as detailed in
the Financial Accounting Standards Board's {"FASB") Accounting Standards Codification
{"A3C"). The financial statements are stated in United States dollars ("USD" or "US3").

Financial statements prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP require management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts and disclosures reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions could change in the
future as more information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported and
disclosed herein.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Assessment as investment entity

The Fund has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per Accounting
Standards Update 2013-08 ("ASU 2013-08") as the Fund cbtains funds from investors for
the purpose of providing the investors with professional investment management services
and to invest the funds solely for the returns from capital appreciation and investment income,
and does not obtain returns or benefits other than capital appreciation or investment income.
The Fund measures and evaluates the performance of its investments on a fair value basis.
Management believes that the Fund is an investment entity as ils business is to deliver
superior risk-adjusted absolute returns with low correlation to market indices in Japan. These
conclusions will be reassessad on an annual basis, if any of these criteria or characteristics
changes.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held with banks and short-term, highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subjected to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. As at December 31, 2017, all cash and cash
equivalents are hald by a reputable bank.

Investment transactions and related investment income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realised gains or losses
from investment transactions are recorded on a weighted average cost basis. Interest is
recorded on an acecrual basis and dividends are recerded on the ex-dividend date, net of any
applicable withholding taxes. Unrealised gains or losses are reflected in the statement of
operatians.

Valuation of investments

Listed securities are valued at their last traded price as at the close of the business day, if no
sales occurred on such date, at the closing “bid” price if ownad and the closing "asked” price
if sold short. Securities for which market quatations are not readily available are valued using
estimated fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and unrealised
gains or losses are reflected in the statement of operations. As at December 31, 2017, there
is no investment that is fair valued by the Investment Manager

The Fund records all derivative financial instruments activities at fair value, Fair values are
determined by using quoted market values where available. Otherwise fair value is based
on fair values provided by counterparties, market makers or pricing services. Had an active
exchange traded market existed for these derivative financial instruments, the fair value
could be significantly differant.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Foreign currency transiation
E) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in functional currency of the Fund
which is Japanese Yen ("JPY") and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currency at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
manelary items that are measured in terms of historical cest in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initlal transactions.
Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences ariging on the settiement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.

The Fund does not isolate the portion of gains or logses on investments which is dug
to changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes in market
prices of the investments. Such fluctuations are included with the net realised and
unrealised gains or losses from investments

() Frasantation of financial statements
For presentation purpose, the assets and liahilitizs of the Fund are translated into
USD at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are ransiated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Condensed schedule of investments

The industry and geographic classifications of the investments reflacted in the accompanying
Condensed Schedule of Investments are based on the Investment Manager's belief as to the
most accurate descriptions as of December 31, 2017.

Taxation

Thera is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the Government of the

Cayman Islands., The only taxes payable by the Fund are withholding taxes applicable to
certain invesiment income,

L
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.8 Taxation (cont'd)

ASC 740, income Taxes defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognised,
measured, presented and disclosed in the financial staternents and reguires entities to
recognise a tax benefit from an uncartain tax position only if it is *more likely than not” that
the position is susiainable, based solely on its technical merits and considerations of the
relevant taxing authority’s widely understood administrative practices and precedents. If this
threshold is met, the Fund measures the tax benefit as the largest amount of the benefit that
is greater than fifty percent likely of being realised upon ultimate settlement. The Fund has
evaluated tax positions laken or expected o be taken in the course of preparing the Fund's
tax returns to determine whether the tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained
by the applicable tax authority. Based on this analysis, there was no material tax position
deemed to meet a more likely than not threshold, Therefore, no tax expense including any
interests and penalties was recorded in the current year.

28 Redemption payable

ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Eguity ("ASC 480", requires that an entity classify
as liabilities any financial instruments in the form of shareholders’ capital that are mandatorily
redeemable on fixed dates for fixed amounts. The liabilities to such shareholders are
presented on the statement of assets and liabilities as redemptions payable

2.10 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of the Fund's assets and liabilities which qualify as financial instrumenis under
FASE ASC B20, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 8207) approximates the
carrying amounts presented in the financial statements.

3. Fair value measurements

Investment transactions are recorded at estimated fair value as defined by ASC 820. The
fair value of an investment is the amount that would be received to sell the investments in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date {i.e., the exit price).
ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framewaork which pricritizes and ranks the level
of market price chservability used in measuring investments at fair value. Market price
observability is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of investments and the
characteristics specific to the investments. Investments with readily available active guoted
prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices genarally will have
a higher degree of market price observahbility and a lesser degree of judgement used in
measuring fair value.,

D G
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Fair value measurements {cont'd)

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 and its applicability to the Fund's
investments are described below:

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as at the end
of the reporting period. The types of investments included in Level 1 include listed equities
and listed derivatives, As reguired by ASC 820, the Fund does not adjust the quoted price
for these investments, even in situations where the Fund holds a large position and a sale
could reasonably impact the quoted price

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are aither
directly or indirectly observable as of the end of the reporting period and fair value is
determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. Investments which
are generally included in this category include corporate bonds and loans, less liquid and
rastricted equity securities and certain over-the-counter ("OTC") denvatives.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investments and include situations where
there is little, if any, market activity for the investments. The inputs into the determination of
fair value require significant management judgement or estimation. Investments that are
included in this category generally include investments in privately held companies, genaral
and limited partnership interest in corporate private equity and real estate funds, funds of
hedge funds and distressed debt,

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, |n such cases, an investment's level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. The Fund's
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety requires a judgement and considers factors specific to the investments.

The following table summarises the valuation of the Fund's investments by the above ASC
820 fair value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2017,

Fair value measurements at reporting period

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
LSS ISE LI5S USH
Assets
Inwestment in securities:
Common stock 24 281,900 - - 24,281 900
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yet
purchased:
Common stock 5,364, 231 = = 5 364 231
Darvative contracts -liabilities
Forward currency contract = 12,643 T 12,643
Future confracts 363,701 - - 363,701

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Fund invested in Level 1 and Level 2
investments, There has been no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during the year,

o
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Due fromd{to) broker

Due frami(to) broker includes cash ang other currency balances, margin deposits an derivative
cantracts and cash collateral with the Fund's prime broker and amounts receivable/payable for
securities transactions that have not settled at the date of the financial statements. The Fund
continuously monitors the credit standing of each broker with whom it conducts business with,
As at December 31, 2017, the due from broker and due to broker balances of US310 872,770
and US%35,183 respectively, represents the receivable and payable balances for securities
transactions that have not been seftled. The due from broker also includes cash and other
currency balances amounting to USE5,724 886 is placed with the Fund's Prime Broker. The
due from broker balances are partially restricted until the Fund satisfies the obligation to
deliver the securities sold, not yel purchased.

Units in issue

Units of the Fund may be issued in different classes. The Trustee has designatad nine (9)
classes of units, being the USD Class A units, JPY Class A units, USD Class B units, JPY
Clazs B units, USD Class C units, JPY Class C units, USD Class D units, JPY Class D units,
JPY Class E and JPY Class F. The Trustee may designate further classzes in the future
which may be offered on different terms and different currencies as the Trustee may
defermine. All 8 classes parficipate in the profit or losses of the Fund and rank pari passu
for all purposes, except with respect to the different management and performance fee,

The units are initially issued at: (1) US$1,000 per unit for USD Class A, USD Class B, USD
Class C and USD Class D units; (2) JPY 100,000 per unit for JPY Class A and JPY Class B
units; (2} JPY 1 per unit for JPY Class C, JFPY Class D; and (4) JFY 10,000 per unit for JPY
Class E and JPY Class F units. Additional units may be subscribed on the first business day
of each month during the year, or at such other time as determinad by the Trustee at the
price egual to the NAV per unit of the respective class as of the last business day of the prior
manth, subjact to certain adjustments.

However, when units are subscribed for during a period when the MAY per unit is more than
the offering price at the beginning of the year or when there is a loss carmy-forward from a
prior periad, certain equalisation adjustments are made to the amount of money paid for the
subscription of units. This ensures:

{i) the performance fee paid to the Investment Manager by the Fund is charged only to
those units that have appreciated in value since their acguisition;

{ii}) all unitholders per class will have the sames amount per unit at risk; and

{iii} all units per class will have the samea NAY,

Any egualisation credit or performance fee redemption as defined in the Private Offering
Memorandum ("OM"), outstanding as at the end of the year will become pavable to the
unitholders or the Manager, respeclively. The equalisation credit will be converted into
additional fully paid units at the end of the financial year while the performance fee
redemptions will be redeemed from the unitholders at the end of the financial year.

All units are redeemable on the first business day of each menth, upon 45 days prior writlen
notice, at the NAV per unit of the respective classes of the close of the business on the

preceding business day before the redemption date, after giving effect to certain adjustment
as described in the OM,

S
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For tha year ended Decembar 31 2017

Partizizatng unit transsctions fo- the year ended Cecambar 31, 2017 wera a5 followe:

USDClage A USDClass B USDClass D JPY Class A JPY Clags B JPY Claga C JPY Claga D JPY Class E
unita units units Lnlks unita Lmits Lnite unite:

Unils cutstanding al tegiining of
year Stz AhE] 1005000 100073 FAAREINE  LARdETT BGLTOARTD KB BAT AT 11, 184
Unitz =aued KL - 4,240 10 10,787
Unite nadesmead - - HE LR e T] (P99 ARy (27 BED VIR (34,330,790 1,250y
Mat affect of units equalisation R = - 1.350 {E1ET) = (214, 3540 (48,277 (1ch
Units cutstanding at end of year 15621417 1000000 1411.433 GAR0GEAS 3485631001 286056006 332 500,067 1B.6F8

14 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Management and performance fees

The Investment Manager will receive, out of the assets of the Fund, a managesment fee equal
to: {a) 1M12 of 1.5% per month of the NAV of Class A and Class B units; (b} 112 of 1 8% per
menth of the NAV of Class C units; (¢} 1 12 of 2%per month of the NAY of Class D units; (d)
1412 of 2.5% per month of the NAY of Class E units and (2) 1/12 of 2% per month of the NAY
of Class F units before deduction of the month's management fee and before making any
deduction for any accrued performance fees as at the |last valuation point in each month.
The management fee for the year amounted to USE480,634, of which US3 41,784 was
payable to the Investment Manager as at December 31, 2017.

Pursuant to the OM, the Investment Manager is also entitied to receive a performance fee
equal to 20% of any increase in the NAY per unit with respect to Class A units and Class F
units and 25% of any increass in the NAY per unit with respect to Class B, Class C, Class D
units and Class E units. The parformance fee is calculated on a high water mark basis so
that any losses from prior periods must be recouped before a performance fee is earned.
The performance fee ls payable to the Investment Manager annually in arrears or upon
redemption of the units. The performance fee for the year amounted to US$354, 858,

Az at December 31, 2017, there is a performance fee redemption payable of US$7 021 due
to redemption of units by unitholders.

Derivative contracts

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters intc derivative contracts for trading
purposes. Typically, derivative contracts serve as components of the Fund's investment
strategies and are utilised primarily to structure investments to economicaily match the
investment objectives of the Fund.

The Fund enters into transactions involving derivative financial instruments in connection
with its investing activities. These instruments are subject to various risks similar to non-
derivative instruments, including market, credit, liquidity and operational risks. The Fund
manages these rigks on an aggregate basis along with the risks associated with ils investing
activities as part of its overall risk management policies, and as such does not distinguish
denvative profit or loss from any other category of investments for income prasentation
purposes. The Fund records its trading-related derivative activities on a fair value basis, as
such these derivative instruments do not qualify for ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.
Accordingly, even though the Fund's investments in derivative instruments may represent
econcmic hedges, they are considered to be non-hedge transactions for purposes of ASC
815 disclosures

Options are contractual agreements that convey the right, but not the cbligation, for the
purchaser either to buy or sell a specific amount of a financial instrument at a fixed price,
either at a fulure date or at any time within a specified period. The Fund purchases and sells
put and call options through regulated exchanges and overthe-counter ("OTC") markets.
Cptions purchased by the Fund provide the Fund the opportunity to purchase {call options)
or sell (put options) the underlying asset at an agreed-upon value either on or before the
expiration of the option. The Fund is exposed to credit risk on purchased options anly to the
extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

SR
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended Dacember 31, 2017

Derivative contracts (cont'd)

Forward contracis are OTC contracts for delayed delivery of currency in which the buyer
agrees to buy and the seller agrees to deliver a specified currency at a specified price on a
specified date. Because the terms of forward contracts are not standardised, they are not
traded on organised exchanges and generally can be terminated or closed-out only by the
agreement of both parties to the contract.  During the year, the forward contract is closed,
realised gain or loss equal to the difference between the proceeds from (or cost of) the close-
out of the contract and the original contract price. VWhen the forward contract is open,
changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised gains or losses.

When the forward confract is closed, the Fund records a realised gain or loss egual to the
differences between the proceeds from (or cost of) the close-cut of the contract and the
original contract price.

Futures contracts entered into the Fund represent firm commitment to buy or sell the
underlying asset at a specified value and point in time based upon the agreed or contracted
guantity. Variation marging are made or receive by the Fund each day, depending on the
daily fluctuations in the value of the contract and the change is recorded as an unrealised
gain or loss. The ultimate gain or loss is equal to the difference between the value of the
contract at the onset and the value of the contract at sethement date and is included in the
statement of operations.

The Fund is subject to equity price risk in the normal course of pursuing its investment
objectives. The Fund may use options, forward contracts and futures contracts to gain
exposure 1o, or hedge against, changes in the value of equity securities.

The Fund reduces its credit risk by entering inte master netting agreements that incorporate
the right of “set-off” (assats less liabilities) across products with the same broker. The Fund
believes that the ultimate seltliement of the transactions outslanding at the year ended will
not have a material effect on the Fund's financial condition.

Effects of derivative contracts in the statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2007

Unrealised Realised Total
Primary underlying risk gainf{loss) gaini(loss) gainf{loss)
USH UsSE US%
Future contracts (522,867) 42 827 (480,040)
Forward currency contracts 12,438 (150,241) (137,803)
Others - (180,568) {180 569)
=48
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Derivative contracts (cont'd)
Veolume of derivative activity
As at December 31, 2017, the volume of the Fund's derivative activities based on the notional

amounts and number of contracts when applicable, categorised by primary underlying risk, is
as follows:

Short Exposure
Number of contracts/
Notional amount quantity
Uss

Equity price
- Index futures 18,501,447 117
- Farward currency

contracts 4 444 9538 -

Offsetting assets and liabilities

The Fund is required to disclese the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the staterment of assets and liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognised
assets and liabilites. These recognised assets and liabilities are financial instruments and
derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement or meet the following right of setoff criteria; the amounts owed by the
Fund to another party are determinable, the Fund has the right o set off the amounts owed
with the amounts owed by the other party, the Fund intends to set off, and the Fund's right
of set off is enforceable at law

As of December 31, 2017, the Fund holds derivative instruments that are eligible for offset in
the statement of assets and liabilities and are subject to a master netting arrangement. The
master netting arrangement allows the counterparty to net any collateral held on behalf of
the Fund or liabilities or payment obligations of the counterparty against any liabilities or
payment obligations of the Fund to the counterparty.

S
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

7. Derivative contracts (cont'd)
Offsetting assets and liabilities (cont'd)
The folowing table provides disclosure regarding the potential effect of offsetfing of
recognised assets and liabilities presented in the statement of assets and liabilities as at
December 31

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of assets and liabilities

Gross
amounts of Met amounts
recognized of financial

financial assots
Gross liabilities set presented in
amounts of off in the the
recoghised statement of statement of Cash
financial assets and assets and Financial collateral
Description assets liahilities liahilities instruments received Netamount
Uss uss Uss Uss Uss uss

Index fulures 363,701 - 363,701 - - 383,701
Forwards 12,643 - 12,643 - - 12,643
B. Financial instruments with off-balance sheet and credit risk

In the nomal course of business, the Fund may trade various financial instruments and enter
into various investment activities with off-balance sheet nsk. These financial instruments
include securities sold, not yet purchased and derivative contracts.

Derivative contracts may result in off-balance sheet risk as the Fund’s obligations under these
contracts may exceed the amounts recognised in the statement of assets and liabilities. The
Fund's exposure to credit risk assocciated with counterparty non-performance on contracts, that
are not exchange traded, is typically limited to the camying values on the statement of assets
and liabilities.

Securities sold, not yet purchased represent cbligations of the Fund to purchase the security
in the market at prevailing prices to the extent that the Fund does not already have the
securities in possession. Accordingly, these transactions result in offtbalance sheet risks as
the Fund's satisfaction of the obligations may exceed the amount recognised in the statement
of assets and liabilties. The Fund's investments in securties and amount due from brokers

are partially restricted until it satisfies the obligation to deliver the investments sold, not yet
purchased.

S
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For tha yaar erded Decembar 39 2017

Financial highlights

Finencal highlights for the yesr ended Decamber 31, 2017 are &5 foliows:
USD Closs A USO Closs B USDClass D JPY¥ Clws A JPY Cless B JPY Clas2 € JPY Clase D JPY Class E

Inflial mmries Initinl meries Inibial=eries Inibal ssoes mbal senes retod senee Indisleeees bndtinl esces
[ (53 s JPY JRY JFY o R
Piar uinil Gpetaticg peleimarce)
Cziining MNAY par Shica 1521 1537 1141 47 554 148,857 1348524 1,213957 2843
Pl EvwnsImiasl (s e et e par
ahans ] 1205) riaal M4 ZRD Ha B0AY 13MET) A AZETOE, FLAETS
Pl s on invieslmacts and fmgn
cuEtCy NSt one 405 434 il 25554 27,52 DZETT 0.21Em3a 1E28
Ercling Men per Shaw 15495 1635 150 T TR 1445595 1 e 1039
% % . % b e o E
Todal vl baliane prackaimanca s ATh AAR &7 T TaF ] T4 448
Faikran ka - - - - - He = =
Total retwrn afier perfamnanoe fae ara &.36 &7 TIT TAIL T.23 TAL 4.86

All Clazs & All Class 8 Al Class D A Class A, Al Chss B All Tlas T All Class O Al Class E
USE units Uab‘:Jnlm UED units JPY units JF“f_‘lrns JFT}:nhu JFT&nI‘m F'rsgnlbu
“ % ’ : ;

Ratios ko searage nel seete; % )

Eaparsses meelioy purfaoens fus AN LRG| (R H ] [ [k L1048 11780 [H81h (R
Parforrany fm - - - - - - - -
Todal fnpr ez alla o i e (AILOT [ R ] (i=.80 [ [k 11 10 4% N TE) [t [k E-LT]
Ml irrsacsliinaanl sugpaniass {10141 {1058 {1107 {5 48] [ ET) ) 0 {1243

Financal highlighls are caloulalesd Torsach clss ol unils Ghken as 2 wiols will per il opeialing perfonmanos Ssciosed Ton e lesd secies ol sach uni,
Anindividual irvestors resalls may vary Fom heze results based on diferant gerlonrmnance e arangsment ard on e bmng of capial Transacton,
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Indemnification

The Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnification provisions. The
Fund's maximum exposure under these arangements, if any, is unknown, However, the
Fund has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of
loss to be remote.

New accounting developments

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASE) and International Accounting
Standard Board (IASB) issued a new global revenue recognition standard which replaces
nearly all existing US GAAP guidance on revenue recognition. The standard requires entities
to make more astimates and use more judgment than under currant guidance to be able to
help financial statement users understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. Entities are required to
present qualitative and quantitative information about contracts with customers, significant
judgments and changes in judgments made when applying the guidance to those confracts
and assefs recognised from costs to cbtain or fulfill a contract.  The standard would be
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management
does not anticipate any material impact on the financial statements upon adoption of the new
global revenue recognition standard,

=20 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

MNotes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

MNew accounting developments (cont’d)

In January 2016, the FASE issued ASLU 2016-01, Financial instruments-Cverall {Subfopic
825-10); Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities ("ASL
2016-01"). The amendments in ASU 2016-01 address certain aspects of recognition,
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments, as follows:

(a)

(b)

{c)
(d)

(el
)

(gl

(h)

Equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of
accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) are to be measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in net income. However, 2n entity
may choose to measure equity investments that do not have readily determinable
fair values at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting frem
ocbservable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical er a similar
investrment of the same issuer;

Simplify the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily
determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment,
When a qualitative assessment indicates that impairment exists, an entity is required
to measure the investment at fair value;

Eliminate the requirement to disclose the fair value of financial instruments
measured at amortised cost for entities that are not public business entities;
Eliminate the requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods) and
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be
disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortised cost on the balance sheet,
Require public business entiies to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair
value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes,

Require an entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion
of the lotal change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the
instrument-specific cradit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at
fair value in accardance with the fair value option for financial instruments:

Require separale presentation of financial assets and financisl liabilities by
measurament category and form of financial asset (that is, securities or leans and
receivables) on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial
statements; and

Clarify that an entity should evaluale the need for a valuation allowance on a defarred
tax asset related to available-for-sale securities in combination with the entity's other
deferred tax assets,

The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018, and interim pericds within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, The
management has evaluated the implications of the above accounting standards and
conducted that they have no material impact on the financial statemeant.

S e
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Subsequent events

Subseguent to the year ended December 31, 2017, there were US$ 13,025 subscriptions to
and USH 197,919 redemptions from the Fund both settled on January 2, 2018

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 22, 2018, which is the date the
financial statemeants ware available to be issuad.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Condensed schedule of investments

As of December 31, 2017

Cost Fair value % of NAV
Us3 uss %
Investment in securities
Comman Stocks
Japan
Consumer Discretionary 4,194 525 1463
Consurmer Staples 1,244 241 4.34
Financials 3,533,535 12.32
Health Care RRZ 843 203
Industrials T.A71.593 2675
Information Technology 4,469,924 15.59
Materials 2,404 132 5.38
Real Estate 181,107 053
Total investment in securities 21,587,120 24,281,800 B4 57
Proceeds Fair value % of NAV
USs UsSs o
Securities sold short, not yet purchased
Commaon Stocks
Japan
Consumer Discreticnary (963 652) {3.38)
Consumer Staples (144 525) {0.50)
Health Care (184,820) (0.84)
Industrials (407,718) (1.42)
Funds (1,657 ,844) {5.78)
Information Technology {1.372,187) {4.79)
Materials (144 526) {0.51)
Real Estate {85,294) [0.30)
Utilities (403, 165) {1.41)
Total securities sold shart, not yet purchased 5,088 486 5,364 231 {18.71)
Derivative contracts -liabilities
Futures Contract (383,701) {1.27)
Forward Contract (12, 843) (0.04)
Japan [376,344) (1.31)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an imtegral part of the financial
statements.
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2016 12 31
2016 12 31
431,432 47,177
3 13,161,937 1,439,258
13,322,731
3 159,166 17,405
4 16,513,539 1,805,755
31,709 3,467
23,443 2,563
30,321,226 3,315,626
3 514,868 56,301
523,510
3 25,081 2,743
384,362 42,030
18,523 2,025
4 1,777,832 194,406
6 2,191 240
6 38,372 4,196
36,000 3,937
2,515 275
151,211 16,535
2,950,955 322,687
27,370,271 2,992,939
1,592.8090 1,521.275 166,351
100.0000 1,527.010 166,979
1,100.734 1,110.623 121,447
7,545.9383 147,898
4,454.6771 148,657
292,705,579 1.348524
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396,887,157 1 218057

10,184 0.893
2016 12 31

69,715 313,258 34,255

47 5

187 20

313,492 34,280

1,645,202 179,903

6 475,703 52,018

31,384 3,432

34,077 3,726

31,510 3,446

1,893 207

736 80

78,800 8,617

2,299,305 251,429

(1,985,813) (217,149)

360,614 39,433

1,145,695 125,282

(1,054,602) (115,321)

471,265 51,533

(121,427) (13,278)
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801,545 87,649
(1,184,268) (129,500)
901,011 98,526
(283,257) (30,974)
2016 12 31
(1,985,813) (217,149)
801,545 87,649
(1,184,268) (129,500)
901,011 98,526
4,528,664 495,209
400,000 43,740
(1,613,896) (176,480)
(1,406,647) (153,817)
1,908,121 208,653
1,624,864 177,679
25,745,407 2,815,260
27,370,271 2,992,939
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2016 12 31

(1,184,268) (129,500)
901,011 98,526
(283,257) (30,974)
(110,515,323) (12,084,851)
119,108,221 13,024,484
174,002,785 19,027,205
(174,676,893) (19,100,918)
(360,614) (39,433)
1,054,602 115,321
(1,616,960) (176,815)
(9,202,580) (1,006,302)
(20,842) (2,279)
31,342 3,427
1,451,107 158,679
(886,832) (96,975)
(5,968) (653)

1,909 209
(2,250) (246)

69 8
(30,623) (3,349)
(1,952,107) (213,463)
4,504,778 492,597
(3,002,021) (328,271)
384,362 42,030
1,887,119 206,356
(64,988) (7,106)
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496,420 54,284
431,432 47,177
292,417 31,976
35,327 3,863
736 80
47 5
2016 12 31
2011 12 19
2012
2011 12 19
190
KY1-9007
FASB ASC
GAAP uSsD

Us$ GAAP
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12

2013-08

2016 12 31

2016 12 31
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2016 12 31

ASC 740
50
50
50
50

10

ASC 480 ASC 480
11

FASB ASC 820 ASC 820

ASC 820
ASC 820
ASC 820

ASC
820
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0TC
2016 12 31 ASC 820
13,161,937 13,161,937
159,166 159,166
514,868 514,868
25,081 25,081
2016 12 31
2016 12 31 440,318
1,777,832
16,073,221

10
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nine( ) 10
1,000
100,000
10,000
1
oM
45
2016 12 31
2,355.0535 100.0000 1,011.113 6,747.4110
198.7881 89.621 798.5273
(960.7156)
(0.3170)
1,592.8090 100.0000 1,100.734 7,545.9383
4,375.8822 265,528,111 341,099,345
330.6620 65,607,596 55,787,812 20,178
(251.5137)  (38,322,811) (9,994)
(0.3534) (107,317)
4,454.6771 292,705,579 396,887,157 10,184
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a
1.5 12 b 1.9 12
c 12 d
2.5 12 e 12
2016 12 31 475,703 38,372
20
25
2016 12 31 2,191
ASC 815
ASC 815

0TC

0TC
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2016 12 31

« ) « ) « )

491,835 1,246,353 1,738,188

(20,570) (100,658) (121,228)
2016 12 31

12,885,926 98
3,807,291

2016 12 31

12 31
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159,166 159,166 159,166
25,081 25,081 25,081
2016 12 31

1,549 1,555 1,137 152,523

14) (36) € (10,282)

14) 8 11 5,657

1,521 1,527 1,111 147,898

(1.80) (1.80) (2.29) (3.03)

(1.80) (1.80) (2.29) (3.03)

(7.87) @7.77) (8.30) (7.80)

(7.87) @7.77) (8.30) (7.80)

(6.69) (6.69) (7.21) (6.72)
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153,305 1.3963 1.2634 10,000
(9,688) (0.094076) (0.089143) (176)
5,040 0.0463 0.0447 69
148,657 1.348524 1.218957 9,893
(3.03) (3.38) (3.51) (1.07)
(3.03) (3.38) (3.51) (1.07)
(7.79) (8.23) (8.29) (7.96)
(7.79) (8.23) (8.29) (7.96)
(6.71) (7.14) (7.21) (6.68)
10
11
2014 FASB
1ASB
GAAP
2018 12 15
2015 FASB ASU 2015-07
ASU 2015-07
2016 12 15
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016-01

GAAP

365,112

2017
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 20156

MNotes LSS
Asseats
Cash and cash equivalents 431 432
Investments in securities, at fair value (cost : US$13,322,731) 3 13,161,937
Derivative contracts, at fair value 3 158,166
Amounts due from broker 4 16,513,538
Dividends receivable 31,709
Other assets 23,443
Total assets 30,321,226
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased, at fair value (procesds:; US$523,510) 3 514 868
Derivative contracts, at fair value 3 25,081
Subscriptions received in advance 384 362
Redemption payable 16,523
Amounts due to broker 4 1,777,832
Ferformancs fee redemption payarle L 2191
Management fee payable G 38,372
Professional fee payable 36,000
Administration fee payable 23513
Other payables and accrued expenses 131,211
Taotal liakilities 2,950,855
MNet asseis 27370271
MNet asset value (“NAV"™) per participating units
IS0 Class & based an 1,592.8090 units ouistanding 1,521.275%
USD Class B based on 100.0000 units outstanding 1.527.010
20 Class D based on 1.100.734 units outstanding 1.110623
JPY Class A based on 7,545.9383 units outstanding 147 898
JPY Class B based on 4,454.6771 units outstanding 148 6357
JPY Class C based on 292,705,579 units outstanding 1.348524
JPY Class D based on 3968 887,157 units outstanding 1.2184957
JPY Class E based on 10,184 units outstanding 9,893

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an infegral part of the

financial statements.

e e
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of operations

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Motes uss

Investment income
Dividend, nel of withholding taxes of LIS69,715 313 258
Interest income 47
Other income 187
Total investment income 313 492
Expenses
Stock loan fees 1,645,202
Management fee G 475,703
Dividend expense 31,384
Professional fee 34,077
Administration fee 31,510
Trustee fee expense 1,893
Interest expense T35
Other expense 78,800
Total expenses 2,258 305
Met investment expense i1,985 813)
Gain on investments and foreign currency transactions
Met realised gain on investments in securties 360814
Met realised gain on derivative fransactions 1,145,695
Met change in unrealisad loss on investmeants in sacurities {1,054 602)
Met change in unrealised gain on derivative transactions 471,265
Met loss on foreign currency transactions (121,427
Met gain on investments and foreign curmency transactions B01,545
Met change in net assets resulting from operations {1,184 268)
Other comprehensive income, reclassified subsequently to profit

or loss
Foreign currency translations 801,011
Total comprehensive income for the year (283.257)

The accompanying accouniing policies and expfanatory information fonm an integral part of the fnancial
slatemers.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of changes in net assets

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Operations

Met investment expense

MNet gain on investments and foreign currency transactions
Net change in net assets resulting from operations

Other comprehensive income

Foreign curmency translations

Capital transactions

Subscrption of JPY units
Subscrption of LSD units
Redemption of JPY units

Redemption of USD units

Met increase in net assets resulting from capital transactions

MNet increase in net assets for the year
Met assels al beginning of year

MNet assets at end of year

Ooooooooooooooooooaod

Uss

{1.065.813)
801,545

{1,184.268)

201,011

4,528,684
400,000
11,613,896)
11,406,647}

1,808,121

1,624 864
25,745 407

27,370,271

The accompanying secounting policies and explanatory information form an infegral part of the financial

Stalermernts.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Met change in net assets resulting from operations

Adjustment for foreign currency translations

Met change in net assets resulting from aperations after adjustment for foreign
currency translations

Adjustments to reconcile net change in net assels resulling from
operations o net cash generated from operating activities:

Furchases of investments in securities

Proceeds from sales from investments in securities
Proceeds from securities sold, not yet purchased
Purchase to cover securities sold, not yet purchased

Met realised gain on investments in securities

Met change in unrealized loss on investments in securities

Change in assets and liabilities
Derivative contracts, at fair value
Amounts due from broker
Dividends receivable
Other assets
Amounts due to broker
Perforrmance fee payable
Perfomance fee redemption payable
Management fee payable
Professional fee payable
Administration fee payable
Other payables and accrued expensas

Met cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activity

Proceeds from subscription of unils
Payments of redemption of units
Subscriptions recaived in advance

Met cash flows used in financing activity

Met change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information

Dividends received
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Interest received

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an infegral part of the financial

Statements.
M
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{1,184 268)

801,011

(283,257}

(110 515,323)
119,108,221
174,002,785

(174 676,893}
(260,614)
1,054,602

(1,616,960}
(9,202,580)
{20,842}
31,342
1,451,107
(886, 832)
(5,968)
1,909
(2,250)
69
{30,623}

(1,952,107}

4 504,778
(3,002,021}
384,362

1,887,119

{64,588)
496 420

431,432

202417
35,327
738

47
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Corporate information

Shin-Ka Fund {the "Fund”) was incorporated as an exempted Trust in the Cayman Islands
on December 19, 2011 and commenced operations on February 1, 2012,

Elian Trustes (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Qgier Trustees (Cayman) Limited) (the
"Trustee"). a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman, acts as Trustee of the Fund.
Pursuant to the Trust Deed dated December 19, 2011, the Trustee has overall authority and
responsibility for the management and administration of the Fund.

The Trustee has delegated the investment management responsibilities to Gordian Capital
Singapore Private Limited (the "Investment Manager™, a private limited company incorporated
in Singapore. The Investment Manager has appeinted Darwin Capital Partners, Inc. ({the
“Imvestment Advisor'), 8 company incorporated in Japan, to act as investment advisor in
respect of the Fund,

The Fund's principal investment objective is to deliver superior risk-adjusted absolute returns
with low comelation to market indices in Japan. Rather than seeking to outperform a
benchmark, the Fund seeks to implement a fundarmental long and short positions primarily in
the equity securilies of Japanese companies combined with an event driven strateqy to achiewe
superior absolute returns by capitalising on mispriced securities. The Fund may also inwvest in
debl securities. convertible bonds, futures and derivative instruments.

The registered office of the Fund is located at the office of Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited, 190
Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KYI1-9007, Cayman Islands.

The Trustee appointed Portcullis Trust (Singapore) Ltd (the "Administrator”) as the Fund's
Administrator,

The Trustes appointed Momura Intemational ple as the Fund's prime broker and custodian,

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Fund are presented using accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as detailed in
the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (*FASE") Accounting Standards Codification
(*ASC™. The financial statements are stated in United States dollars ('USD® or "USE7).
These are the Fund's first financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
There i no requirement o present reconciliations of equity or profit or loss on first-time
adoption of .5, GAAP. See Note 12 for explanation of the transition to [FRS.

Financial statements prepared in conformity with U3, GAAP require management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts and disclosuras reporied in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions coulkd change in the
future as more information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported and
disclosed herein,
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies {cont'd)
Assessment as investment entity

The Fund has been deemed to meet the definition of an inwvestment entity per Accounting
Standards Update 2013-08 ("ASL 2013-08%) as the Fund obtains funds from investars for
the purpose of providing the investors with professional investment management services
and ta invest the funds salely for the retums from capital appreciation and investment income,
and does not obtain returns or benefits other than capital appreciation or investment income.
The Fund measures and evaluates the performance of its investments on & fair value basis.
Management believes that the Fund is an investment entity as its business is to deliver
superior risk-adjusted absolute returns with low correlation to market indices inJapan. These
conclusions will be reassessed on an annual basis, if any of these criteria or characteristics
changes.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held with banks and short-term, highly lguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subjected to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. As at December 31, 2018, all cash and cash
equivalents are held by a reputable bank.

Investment fransactions and related investment income

Imvestment ransactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realised gains or losses
from investment transactions are recorded on a weighted average cost basis. Interest is
recorded an an accrual basis and dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date, net of any
applicable withholding taxes. Unrealised gains or losses are reflected in the statement of
operations.

Valuation of investmenis

Listed securities are valued at their last traded price as at the close of the business day, if no
sales occurred on such date, at the closing *bid” price if owned and the closing “asked” price
ifsold shorl. Securities for which market quotations are not readily available are valued using
estimated fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and unrealised
gains or losses are reflected in the statement of operations. As at December 31, 2016, there
is no investment that is fair valued by the Investment Manager.

The Fund records all derivative financial instruments activities at fair value. Fair values arg
determined by using quoted market values where available, Otherwise fair value is based
on fair values provided by counterparties, market makers or pricing servicas. Had an active
exchange traded market existed for these derivative financial instruments, the fair value
could be significantly different.
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Shin-Ka Fund

MNotes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Foreign currency transiation
[a) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in functional currency of the Fund
which is Japanese Yen (“JPY" and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currency at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the intial transactions.
Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of manetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.

The Fund does not isolate the portion of gains or losses on investments which is due
o changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes in markel
prices of the investments. Such Auctuations are included with the net realised and
unrealised gains or losses from investments.

(k) Presentation of financial sfafements
For presentation purpose, the assets and liakbilities of the Fund are translated into
L3S0 at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
The exchange differences arnsing on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Condensed schedule of investmenits

The industry and geographic classifications of the investments reflected in the accompanying

Condensed Schedule of Investments are based on the Investment Manager's belief as to the

most accurate descriptions as of December 31, 2018,

Taxation

There is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the Government of the

Cayman |slands. The only taxes payable by the Fund are withholding taxes applicable (o
certain investment income.

--10 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2018

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Taxation {cont'd)

ASC T40, Income Taxes defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognised,
measured, presentad and disclosed in the financial statements and requires entities to
recognise a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is *more likely than not™ that
the position is sustainable, based solely on its technical merits and considerations of the
relevant taxing autharity's widely understood administrative practices and precedents. If this
threshold is met, the Fund measures the tax benefit as the largest amount of the benefit that
is greater than fifty percent likely of being realised upon ultimate settlement. The Fund has
evaluated tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Fund's
tax returns to determine whether the tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained
by the applicable tax authority. Based on this analysis, there was no malerial lax position
deemed to meet a more likely than not threshold. Therefore, no tax expense including any
interasts and panalties was recorded in the current year,

Redemption payable

ASC 480, Distinguwishing Liabilities from Equity ("ASC 480"}, requires that an entity classify
as liabilities any financial instruments in the form of shareholders' capital that are mandatorily
redeamable on fixed dates for fixed amounts. The liabilities to such shareholders are
presented on the statement of assets and liabilities as redemptions payable.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of the Fund's assets and liahilities which gqualify as financial instruments under
FASE ASC 820, Fair Valie Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 820 approximates the
carrying amounts presented in the financial statemenis.

Fair value measurements

Investment wansacltions are recorded al estimated fair value as defined by ASC 820. The
fair value of an investment is the amount that would be received to sell the investments in an
arderly transaction between market participants atthe measurement date (i.e .. the exit price).
ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework which prioritizes and ranks the level
of market price observability used in measuring investments at fair value, Market price
ahsenakhility is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of investments and the
characteristics specific to the investments. Investments with readily available active quoted
prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally will hawe
a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgement used in
measuring fair value,

The three lenvels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 and its applicability to the Fund's
investments are described below;

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as at the end
of the reporting period. The types of investments included in Level 1 include listed equities
and listed derivatives. As required by ASC B20, the Fund does not adjust the quoted price
for these investments, even in situations where the Fund holds a large position and a sale
could reasenably impact the quoted price.

Yot L
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Fair value measurements {cont'd)

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the end of the reporling period and fair value is
determined through the use of models or other valuation methodolegies. Investments which
are generally included in this category include corporate bonds and lnans, less liquid and
restricted equity securities and certain oversthe-counter ("OTC”) derivatives.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investments and include situations where
there is little, if any, market activity for the investments. The inputs inta the determination of
fair value require significant management judgement or estimation.  Investments that are
included in this category generally include investments in privately held companies, general
and limited partnership interest in corporale privale equity and real estate funds, funds of
hedge funds and distressed debt.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment's level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. The Fund's
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety requires a judgement and considers factors specific ta the investments.

The following table summarises the valuation of the Fund's investments by the abowve ASC
820 fair value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2016.

Fair value measurements at reporting period

Level 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
Ush uss Ush LS5
Assets
Investment in secunies:;
Common stock 13,161,937 - - 13,161,937
Derivative contracts -assets
Futures contracts 155,166 - 159.168
Liahbilities.
Securities sold, not yet
purchased:
Common stock 514,868 - - 514,868
Denvative contracts -liabilities
Forward currency contract - 25,081 - 25,081

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Fund invested in Level 1 and Lewvel 2
investrments. There has been no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

S b
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Shin-Ka Fund

MNotes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Due from/ito) broker

Due fromito) broker includes cash and other currency balances, margin deposits on derivative
contracts and cash collateral with the Fund’s prime broker and amounts receivable/payable for
securties transactions that hawve not settled at the date of the financial statements. The Fund
continuously monitors the credit standing of each broker with whom it conducts business with.
As al December 31, 2016, the due from broker and due to broker balances of US5440 318
and USS1.777 832 respectively, represents the receivable and pavable balances for
securities transactions that have not been settled. The due from broker also includes cash
and other currency balances amounting to US$16,073,221 is placed with the Fund’s Prime
Broker. The due from broker balances are parially restricted until the Fund satisfies the
obligation to delivar the securities sold, not yet purchased.

Units in issue

Units of the Fund may be issued in different classes. The Trustee has designated nine (9)
classes of units, being the USD Class A units, JPY Class A units, USD Class B units, JPY
Class B units, USD Class G units, JPY Class C units, USD Class D units, JPY Class D units,
JPY Class E and JPY Class F. The Truslee may designate further classes in the fulure which
may be offered on different terms and different currencies as the Trustee may determine. All
& classes participate in the profit or losses of the Fund and rank pari passu for all purposes,
except with respect to the different management and performance fee.

The units are initially issued at: (1) US51,000 per unit for S0 Class A, USD Class B, UsD
Class C and USD Class D units; (2) JPY100,000 per unit for JPY Class A and JPY Class B
units: (3 JPY 1 per unit for JPY Class C, JPY Class D; and (4) JPY 10,000 per unit for JPY
Class E and JPY Class F units. Additional units may be subscribed on the first business day
of each month during the year, or at such other time as determined by the Trustee at the
price equal to the NAY per unit of the respective class as of the last business day of the prior
month, subject to certain adjustments.

However, when unils are subscribed for during a period when the MAY per unit is more than
the offering price at the beginning of the year or when there is a loss camy-forward from a
prior peried, certain equalisation adjustments are made to the amount of money paid for the
subscription of units. This ensures:

(i) the performance fee paid to the Investment Manager by the Fund is charged only to
those units that have appreciated in value since their acquisition;
(it} all unitholders per class will have the same amount per unit at risk; and

(i) all units per class will have the same NAV.

Any equalisation credit or performance fee redemplion as defined in the Private Offering
Memorandum ("OM™, outstanding as at the end of the year will become payable (o the
unitholders or the Manager, respeclively. The egualisation credit will be converted into
additional fully paid units at the end of the financial year while the performance fee
redemptions will be redeemed from the unitholders at the end of the financial year,

All units are redeemable on the first business day of each month, upon 435 days prior written
natice, at the NAY per unit of the respecitive classes of the close of the business on the

preceding business day before the redemption date, after giving effect to certain adjustment
as described inthe O,

- 15 -
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Shin-kKa Fund

Motes to financial statements

For ey gnclcdd December 37, 2018

Farticipeting unit trensactions for the yesr ended December 31, 2016 warg 85 follows:

UshClass & USDClassBE WSDClass D JPY Class & JPY Class B JPY Class & JPY Class O JPY Class E
units units units units units units units units
Units outstanding at baginning of
year 2 958 0575 Traney o R R R B ] BTAT A0 £ ATEARID DEEEIR 11 340 054 346
Unils issusd SR PR - SR TEI AT IATEEID BBV ShG a5 7ETE1Z 20173
Lrils recdaarmed (500 TS . - - (2319737 (35522371 - |5 98
Met effect of units equalisation {03970} - 4 v (0353, (107,317} - -
Unils aulstanding al end ol wear 1,6 HUEK) 1 GE1L 1K) 11000734 e BEEE 42546771 28270050 395,887 157 0184
- 14 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Management and performance fees

The Investment Manager will receive, out of the assets ofthe Fund, a management fee equal
to: {a) 112 of 1.5% per month of the NA\ of Class A and Class B units; (b) 1/12 of 1.9% per
month of the NAV of Class C units; () 1 /12 of 2%per month of the NAV of Class D units; {d)
112 of 2.5% per month of the NAV of Class E units and {e) 112 of 2% per month of the NAV
of Class F units before deduction of the month's management fee and before making any
deduction for any accrued performance fees as at the last valuation point in each month. The
management fee for the year amounted to US3$475, 703, of which US538 372 was payable
to the Investment Manager as at December 31, 2016,

Pursuant to the OM, the Investment Manager is also entitled to receive a performance fee
equal to 209 of any increase in the NAY per unit with respect to Class A units and Class F
units and 25% of any increase in the NAW per unit with respect to Class B, Class C, Class D
units and Class E units, The performance fee is calculated on a high water mark basis so
that any losses from prior periods must be recouped before a performance fae is earned.
The performance fee is payable to the Investment Manager annually in arrears or upon
redemption of the units. The performance fee for the year amounted to USENIlL

Ag at December 31, 2016, there is a performance fee redemption payable of US352 191 due
to redemption of units by unitholders.

Derivative contracts

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into derivative contracts for trading
purposes. Typically, derivative contracts serve as components of the Fund's investment
strategies and are utilised primarily to structure investments to econemically match the
investment objectives of the Fund.

The Fund enters into transactions involving derivative financial instruments in connection
with its investing activities. These instruments are subject to various risks similar to non-
derivative instruments, including market, credit, iquidity and operational risks. The Fund
manages these risks on an aggregate basis along with the risks associated with its investing
gotivities as part of its cverall risk management policies, and as such does not distinguish
derivative profit or loss from any other category of investments for income presentation
purposes. The Fund records its trading-related derivative activities on a fair value basis, as
such these derivative instruments do not qualify for ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.
Accordingly, even though the Fund's investments in derivative instruments may represent
economic hedges, they are considered to be non-hedge transactions for purposes of ASC
815 disclosures.

Options are contractual agreements that convey the right, but not the oblination, for the
purchaser either to buy or 5ell a specific amount of a financial instrument at a fixed price,
either al a future date or at any time within a specified period. The Fund purchases and sells
put and call options through regulated exchanges and over-the-counter ("OTC") markets.
COptions purchased by the Fund provide the Fund the opportunity o purchase (call options)
or sell (put options) the underlying asset at an agreed-upon value either on or before the
expiration of the option, The Fund is exposed to credit nsk on purchased options only to the
extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

- 15 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Derivative contracts (cont'd)

Forward contracts are OTC contracts for delayed delivery of currency in which the buyer
agrees to buy and the seller agrees to deliver a specified currency at a specified price on a
specified date. Because the terms of forward contracts are not standardised, they are not
traded on omanised exchanges and generally can be temminated or closed-out anly by the
agreament of both paries to the contract. During the year, the forward contract is closed,
realised gain or loss equal to the difference between the proceeds from (or cost of) the close-
aut of the contract and the original contract price. When the forward contract is open.
changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised gains ar losses.

When the forward contract is closed, the Fund records a realised gain or los5 equal to the
differences between the proceeds from (or cost of) the close-out of the contract and the
ariginal contract price.

Futures contracts entered into the Fund represent firm commitment to buy or sell the
underlying asset at a specified value and point in time based upon the agreed or contracied
guantity. \ariation margins are made or receive by the Fund each day, depending on the
daily fluctuations in the value of the contract and the change is recorded as an unrealised
gain or loss. The ultimate gain or loss is equal to the difference between the value of the
contract at the onset and the value of the contract at settlement date and is included in the
statement of operations.

The Fund is subject fo equity price risk in the normal course of pursuing its investment
abjectives. The Fund may use options, forward contracts and futures contracts to gain
exposure ta, or hedge against, changes in the value of equity securities.

The Fund reduces its credil risk by entering into master netting agreements thatl incorporate
the right of "sel-off" {(assels less liabilities) across products with the same broker. The Fund
pelieves that the ultimate settlement of the transactions cutstanding at the vear ended will
not have a matenal effect on the Fund's financial condition,

Effects of derivative conifracts in the statememnt of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2016

Unrealised Realised Total
Primary underlying risk gainf{loss) gainf{loss) gain/{loss)
Lss uss LSE
Future contracts 491,835 1,246 353 1,738,188
Forward currency cantracis (20,570) (100, 658) (121,228)
= 16 =
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Shin-Ka Fund
Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Derivative contracts {cont'd)
Volume of derivative activity
As at December 31, 2018, the volume of the Fund's derivative activities based on the notional

amounts and number of contracts when applicable, categonised by primary underlying sk, is
&8s follows:

Long Exposure Short Exposure
Number of Number of
Motional contracts/ Motional contracts/
Equity price amount quantity amount quantity
Index futures 12,885,926 &8 - -
Forward currency
contracts - - 3,807 281 -

Offseffing assets and lfabifities

The Fund is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the statement of assets and liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements an its financial position for recognised
assets and liabilities. These recognised assets and liabilities are financial instruments and
derivative instrurnents that are either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement or meet the following right of setoff criteria: the amounts owed by the
Fund to another party are determinable, the Fund has the right to set off the amounts owed
with the amounts owed by the other party, the Fund intends to set off, and the Fund's right
of set off is enforceable at law.

As of December 31, 2016, the Fund holds derivative instruments that are eligibhe for offset in
the statement of assets and liahilities and are subject to a master netting amrangement. The
master netting amangement allows the counterparty to net any collateral held on behalf of
the Fund or liakilities or payment obligations of the counterparty against any liahilities or
payment obligations of the Fund to the counterpary.

The following table provides disclosure regarding the potential effect of offsetting of
recognised assets and liahilities presented in the statement of assets and liabilities as at 31
December;

- 47 -
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Shin-Ka Fund
Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Derivative contracts [cont’d)
Offsetfing assets and liabilities fcont’d)

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of assets and liabilities

Gross
amounts Met
of amounts
recagnized of
financial financial
liabilities assets
Gross set off in presented
amounts the in the
of statement  statement
recognised  of assets of assets Cash
financial and and Financial collateral Met
Description assets liahilities liabilities  instruments  received amount
ss Uss Us§ Uss USE UsE
[ndex
futures 159,166 - 159 166 - - 158,186
Forwards 25, 081 - 25, 081 - - 25, 081
&. Financial instruments with off-balance sheet and credit risk

In the normal course of business, the Fund may trade various financial instruments and enter
into various investment activities with off-balance sheet risk. These financial instruments
include securities sold, not yet purchased and derivative coniracts.

Cenvative contracts may result in off-balance sheet risk as the Fund's obligations under these
contracts may exceed the amounts recognised in the statement of assets and liabilities. The
Fund's exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty non-performance on contracts, that
are not exchange traded, is typically limited to the carrying values on the statement of assets
and ligbilities.

Securities sold, not vet purchased represent obligations of the Fund Lo purchase the security
in the markel at prevailing piices to the extent that the Fund does not already hawve the
secunties in possession, Accordingly, these transactions result in off-balance sheet risks as
the Fund's satisfaction of the obligations may exceed the amount recognised in the statemeant
of assets and liabilities. The Fund's investments in securities and amount due from brokers
are partially restricted until it satisfies the obligation to deliver the investments sold, not yet
purchased,

=18 =
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Motes to financial statements
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

Indemnification

The Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnification provisions. The
Fund’s maximum exposure under these amangements, if any, is unknown. Howewver, the
Fund has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of
loss to be remote.

Mew accounting developments

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) and International Accounting
Standard Board (ASB) issued a new global revenue recognition standard which replaces
nearly all existing US GAAR guidance on revenue recognition. The standard requires entities
to make more estimates and use more judgment than under current guidance 1o be able to
help financial statement users understand the nature, amount, liming and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. Entities are required to
present qualitative and quantitative information about contracts with customers, significant
judgments and changes in judgments made when applying the guidance to those confracts
and assets recognized from costs to obtain or fulfill 2 contract.  The standard would be
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after 15 December 2018, Management does
not anticipate any material impact en the financial statements upon adoption of the new
global revenue recognition standard.

In May 2015, the FASE issuad amendments on ASU 2015-07, Discloswras for invesfmants
in certain entifies that calculate net asset value par share (or ifts equivalent]. Updates to ASL
2015-07 address the diversity in practice related to how certain investments measured at net
asset value with redemption dates in the future (including perdodic redemption dates) aie
categonized within the fair value higrarchy., The amendments in this update remove the
requirement to categorise within the fair value higrarchy all investments for which fair value
15 measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The amendments also
remove the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investrments that are eligible to be
measured at fair value using the net asset value per share practical expedient. Rather, those
disclosures are limited Lo investments for which the entity has elected to measure the fair
value using that practical expedient. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal yvears.
Management does not anticipate any material impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of ASL 2015-07.

- 20 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

MNew accounting developments {cont'd)

In January 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-01. Financial instruments-Ovarall {Subiopic
825-10); Hecognition and Measureiment of Financial Assefs and Financial Liabiifies ("ASU
2016-01"). The amendments in ASU 2016-01 address cerain aspects of recognition,
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments, as follows;

(a)

(b}

(€)
(d}

(e}
()

(@)

(h}

Equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of
accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) are to be measured
at tair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. However, an entity
may choose to measure equity investrments that do not have readily determinable
fair values at cost minus impaiment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from
observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical ar a similar
investment of the same issuer;

Simplify the impairment assessment of equily investmenls without readily
determinable fair values by requiring a qualilative assessment 1o identify impairment.
When a qualitative assessment indicates that impairment exists, an entity is required
to measure the investment at fair value;

Eliminate the requirement to disclose the fair walue of financial instruments
measurad at amortized cost for entities that are not public business entities;
Eliminate the requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods) and
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be
disclosed for financial instruments measured at amorntized cost on the balance sheet;
Require public business entities 1o use the exil price notion when measuring the fair
value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes;

Require an entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion
of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the
instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at
fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments,

Require separate presentation of financial asseis and financial liabilities by
measurement category and form of financial asset (that is, securities or loans and
receivables) on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial
statements; and

Clarify that an entity should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred
lax assel related to available-for-sale secuiities in combination with the entity's other
deferred tax assels.

The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after Decamber 15,
2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, The
management has evaluated the implications of the above accounting standards and
conducted that they have no matenal impact on the financial statement.
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Shin-Ka Fund

MNotes to financial statements

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016

First-time Adoption of U.S. GAAP

As stated in Note 2, these are the Fund’s first financial statements prepared in accordance
U5, GAAP,

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial
statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2016.

The transition was camied out from the Fund's stated accounting policies and notes, The
transition to LS, GAAP reporting has resulted in changes in the reported financial statements
and notes thereto compared to what had been presented previously.

Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2016, there were USSE 365,112 subscriptions
to and US3 20,576 redemptions from the Fund both settled on January 3, 2017,

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 31, 2017, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

=32 -
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2017 2016

8 1,989,056 163,640 1,588,044 130,648
9 11,459,438 942,768 7,142,768 587,636
10 227,404 18,709 290,442 23,895
13,675,898 1,125,116 9,021,254 742,179

11 84,917 6,986
12 89,878 7,394 132,435 10,895
174,795 14,380 132,435 10,895
13,850,693 1,139,497 9,153,689 753,074
13 11,772,475 968,522 7,999,321 658,104
7 145,537 11,973 202 17
11,918,012 980,495 7,999,523 658,121
1,932,681 159,002 1,154,166 94,953
14 887,160 72,987 887,160 72,987
1,045,521 86,015 267,006 21,967
1,932,681 159,002 1,154,166 94,953
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2017 2016
15,870,114 1,305,634 13,729,852 1,129,555
9,601,554 789,920 5,714,408 470,124
25,471,668 2,095,554 19,444,260 1,599,679
(2.369,127) (194,908) (1,386,919) (114,102)
23,102,541 1,900,646 18,057,341 1,485,577
3 7,126 586 73,455 6,043
« ) 4 (9,381) 772) 349,825 28,780
- 5 (20,136,107) (1,656,598) (15,955,976)  (1,312,698)
- 12 (75,674) (6.226) (75,241) (6,190)
- 6 (1,813,018) (149,157) (2,183,728) (179,655)
1,075,487 88,480 265,676 21,857
7 (149,373) (12,289) (202) an
926,114 76,191 265,474 21,841
926,114 76,191 265,474 21,841
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887,160 72,987 267,006 21,967 1,154,166 94,953
926,114 76,191 926,114 76,191
15 (147,599)  (12,143) (147,599)  (12,143)
887,160 72,987 1,045,521 86,015 1,932,681 159,002
2016
887,160 72,987 152,049 12,509 1,039,209 85,496
265,474 21,841 265,474 21,841
15 (150,517)  (12,383) (150,517)  (12,383)
887,160 72,987 267,006 21,967 1,154,166 94,953

2017 12 31
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926,114 76,191 265,474 21,841

149,373 12,289 202 17

75,674 6,226 75,241 6,190

(455) @GN (208) @7

22,074 1,816 (16,197) (1,333)

1,172,780 96,485 324,512 26,698

(4,316,670)  (355,132) (330,534) (27,193)

63,038 5,186 (118,480) (9,747)

3,773,154 310,417 930,554 76,557

692,302 56,956 806,052 66,314
(4,038) (332)

688,264 56,623 806,052 66,314

12 (33,117) (2.725) (112,036) (9,217)
(84,917) (6,986)

455 37 208 17

(117,579) (9,673) (111,828) (9,200)

(147,599) (12,143) (150,517) (12,383)

(147,599) (12,143) (150,517) (12,383)

423,086 34,807 543,707 44,731

8 1,588,044 130,648 1,028,140 84,585

(22,074) (1,816) 16,197 1,333

8 1,989,056 163,640 1,588,044 130,648
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6,671 73,247
455 208
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2017 2016
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2017 2016
20,023,033 15,821,607
105,797 108,597
7,277 25,772
20,136,107 15,955,976

2017 2016
464,795 484,365
257,924 352,885
432,865 445,468
93,990 72,503
239,382 190,672
94,044 75,441
88,214 414,924
141,804 147,470
1,813,018 2,183,728

2017 2016
1,075,487 265,676
2016 17 182,833 45,165

24,185 19,457
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(37,138)
(11,195)
(5,525) (8,316)
(17,554)
(25,925) (1,210)
(15,000) (202)
149,373 202
2017 2016
202
(4,038)
149,373 202
145,537 202
2017 2016
1,988,756 1,587,744
300 300
1,989,056 1,588,044
2017 2016
11,459,438 7,142,768
2017 2016
113,086 125,083
114,318 165,359
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227,404 290,442
11.
2021 10 26
12
2017
241,502 70,649 89,537 92,935 494,623
29,354 2,725 1,038 33,117
270,856 73,374 90,575 92,935 527,740
161,506 60,039 68,031 72,612 362,188
44,560 6,698 12,350 12,066 75,674
206,066 66,737 80,381 84,678 437,862
64,790 6,637 10,194 8,257 89,878
2016
170,647 63,619 68,451 79,870 382,587
70,855 7,030 21,086 13,065 112,036
241,502 70,649 89,537 92,935 494,623
119,582 52,438 55,407 59,520 286,947
41,924 7,601 12,624 13,092 75,241
161,506 60,039 68,031 72,612 362,188
79,996 10,610 21,506 20,323 132,435
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2017 2016
720,767 224,864

11,040,968 7,763,717
10,740 10,740

11,772,475 7,999,321

887,160 2016 887,160
2016 887,160

105,000 2016 105,000
2017 12 31
2017 2016
438,600 340,068
731,000
1,169,600 340,068
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@

)

2017 12 31
729,873 1,054,034 205,149 1,989,056
95,775 6,109,887 5,253,776 11,459,438
113,086 113,086
84,917 84,917
938,734 7,163,921 5,543,842 13,646,497
(11,101,917) (543,748) (116,070)  (11,761,735)
(10,163,183) 6,620,173 5,427,772 1,884,762
2016 12 31
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778,153 431,991 377,900 1,588,044
128,089 3,964,411 3,050,268 7,142,768
125,083 125,083
1,031,325 4,396,402 3,428,168 8,855,895
(7,845,184) (137,808) (5.589)  (7.988,581)
(6,813,859) 4,258,594 3,422,579 867,314
2017 12 31
3.8 2016 :0.6
208,800 2016 21,208
2017 12 31
0.3 2016 :4.3
13,515 2016 122,152
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(b)

©
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11,761,735
2016 12 31
7,988,581
©)
2017 12 31
©)
2017 2016 12 31
2017 2016 12 31
()
2017 2016

13,646,497 8,855,895
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19
@
2017 2016
15,870,114 13,729,852
9,601,554 5,714,408
12
9 11 23,987
2016 852 13
(b)
2017 2016
1,038,487 731,600
20
2017 2016

5,316,668 3,428,833
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2017

Mote 2017 20186
3 3
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,989,056 1,588,044
Trade and other receivables g 11,459,438 7,142,768
Other current assets 10 227,404 290,442

13,675,898 9,021,254

Non-current assets

Loan to related corporation T1 84,917 -
Property, plant and equipment 12 80,878 132,435
174,795 132,435
Total assets 13,850,693 9,153,689
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 11,772,475 7,999,321
Current income tax liabilities T 145,537 202
Total liabilities 11,918,012 7,999,523
NET ASSETS 1,932,681 1,154,166
EQUITY
Share capital 14 887,160 887,160
Retained profits 1,045,521 267,008
Total equity 1,932,681 1,154,166

The accompanying notes -form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

Mote 2017 2016
$ 5

Management fees 15,870,114 13,729,852
Performance fees 9,601,554 5,714,408

25,471,668 19,444,260
Less: Advisory fees (2,369,127)  (1,386,919)

23,102,541 18,057,341
Other income 3 7,126 73.455
Other (losses)/gains 4 (9,381) 349 825
Expenses
- Employee compensation 5 (20,136,107) (15,855,978)
- Depreciation expense 12 (75,674) (75,241)
- Other operating expenses 8 (1,813,018) (2,183,728)
Profit before income tax 1,075,487 265 676
Income tax expense 7 (149,373) (202)
Profit after tax 926,114 265,474

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income 926,114 266,474

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalemenis.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

Share Retained Total
Mote capital profits equity
& 3 5

2017
Beginning of financial year 887,160 267,006 1,154,166
Total comprehensive income - 926,114 926,114
Dividends paid 15 - (147,599) (147,599)
End of financial year 887,160 1,045,521 1,932,681
2016
Beginning of financial year Bav. 160 152,049 1,039,209
Total comprehensive income - 265,474 265474
Dividends paid 15 - (150,517 (150,517)
End of financial year 887,160 267,006 1,154,166

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAFPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
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Mate

Cash flows from cperating activities
Profit after tax
Adjustments for:
- Income tax axpense
- Depraciation
- Interest income
- Unrealised loss/{gain) on cash and cash equivalents

Change in working capital:
- Trade and other receivables
- Other current assefs
- Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment 12
Loan to related corporation

Interest received

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of financial year 8
Effects of currency translation on cash and cash
equivalents
End of financial year a8

2017 2016
§ %
926,114 265,474
149,373 202
75,674 75,241
(455) (208)
22,074 {16,197)
1,172,780 324,512
(4,316,670) (330,534)
63,038 (118,480)
3,773,154 930,554
692,302 806,052
{4.038) i
688,264 806,052
(33,117) (112.036)
(84,917) ;
455 208
(117,579) (111,828)
(147,599) (150,517)
(147,599) (150,517)
423,086 543,707
1,588,044 1,028,140
(22,074) 16,197
1,089,056 1,588,044

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements,

1. General information

Gordian Capital Singapore Private Limited (the *Company”) is incorporated and
domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered office is 192 Waterloo Strest,
#05-01 Skyline Building, Singapaore 187966.

The principal activity of the Company is that of fund management.

Cn 12 March 2014, the Company received its Capital Markets Services License
from the Monetary Authority of Singapore ("MAS”) under the Securities and Futures
Act (Cap,289).

2, Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS") under the historical cost convention, except
as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with FRS requires
management o exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions. There are no areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2017

On 1 January 2017, the Company adopted the new or amended FRS and
Interpretations te FRS ("INT FRS") that are mandatory for application for the
financial year. Changes to the Company's accounting policies have been made as
required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS and
INT FRS.

10
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 Basis of preparation {continuad)

The adoption of these new or amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in
substantial changes to the accounting policies of the Company and had no material
effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior financial vears,

2.2 Revenue recognition

Management fee income are recognised over the period in which the services are
rendared. Management fees are calculated at predetermined rates based upon the
net asset values of the funds managed.

Performance fees are recognised upon satisfaction of contractual obligation in
accordance with the terms of the investment managemenl agreements.

External asset management ("EAM") feas are recognised over the period in which
the services are rendered and are based upon the net asset values of the monies
managed. EAM retrocession fees are calculated at predetermined rates and based
upon actual transactions. EAM performance fees (if any) are recognised upon
satisfaction of contractual obligations in accordance with the terms of each External
Asset Management Agreement executed with each investor.

Advisory fees and consulting fees are recognised upon satisfaction of contractual
obligation in accordance with the terms of the agreeameants.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
2.2 Employee compensation

Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies to be
capitalised as an asset.

{a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Company pays fixed contributions into separate entities such as the
Central Provident Fund on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

(&) Employee leave entitfernent
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to

employees, A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up o the balance sheet date.

11
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4  Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessors) are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the psriod of
the lease.

Contingent rents are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when incurred.
2.5  Income taxes

Curreant income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount
expected to be paid fo or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shest
date.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
fax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statemenis except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date,

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expenses in profit
or loss, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction which is
recognised directly in equity.

2.6  Property, plant and equipment

Properly, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditure relating to propery, plant and equipment that has already
been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance axpensas are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

12
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Useful lives
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fitlings 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Renovation 3 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss when the
changes arise,

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever there is any
objective evidence or indication that these assets may be impaired.

If the recoverable amounl of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised
as an impairment logs in profit or loss.

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of this asset is increased to
its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of accumulated
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in profit or loss.

2.8 Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Loan to related corporation

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and loan to related
corporation are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.

13
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Loans and receivables (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Loan to related corporation

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
gvidences that these financial assets are impaired and recognises an allowance for
impairment when such evidence exists. Significant financial difficulties of the debtar,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default or significant delay in
paymeants are objective evidence that these financial assets are impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment
allowance account which is calculated as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

These assets are presented as current assets except for those that are expected to
be realised later than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are presented
as non-current assels.

2.9 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). Otherwise, they are presented as non-
current liabilities. Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value,
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

211 Currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar, which is the functional
currency of the Company. Transactions in a currency other than the functional
currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rales at the dates of the transactions. Currency exchange differences
resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing
rates at the balance sheet date are recognisad in profit or loss,

14
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Faor the financial year ended 31 December 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
212 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital
account.

213 Dividends

Dividends to the Company’'s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are
approved for payment.

214 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply
with all the attached conditions.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Government grants relating to assets are deducted against the carrying
amount of the assets,

2.15 Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights
are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are
directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some
or all of the following features or attributes: (a) restricted activities; (b) a narrow and
well defined objective, such as to provide investment oppaortunities for investors by
passing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
investors; (c) insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities
without subordinated financial support; and (d) financing in the form of multiple
contractually linked instruments to investors that create concentrations of credit or
other risks.

Interest in funds managed by Company

The Company has determined that the funds that it manages are structurad entities,
as a result of the power conveyed through their investment management and other
agreements with the funds which permit the Company to participate in their
investing and operating decisions. The Company's interests in these funds include
the managament and performance fees that it earns from them, together with
ownership interests that it holds, if any.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

3. Other income

Government grants
Interest income

4, Other (losses)/gains

Met currency exchange (losses)gains

2017 2016
$ $
6,671 73,247
455 208
7,126 73,455
2017 2016
$ $

(9,381) 349825

5. Employee compensation
2017 2016
$ $
Wages and salaries 20,023,033 15,821,807
Employer's contribution to defined contribution plans 105,797 108,597
Other benefits 7,277 25772

6. Other operating expenses

Rental on operating leases
Professional fees

Travelling and entertainment expenses
Computer support and maintenance
Data subscription expenses

Office insurance

Marketing expenses

Other expenses

20,136,107 15,955,976

2017 2016
5 $

484 795 484,365
257,924 352,885
432 865 445 468

83,990 72,503
239,382 190,672

94,044 75,441

88,214 414,924
141,804 147,470

1,813,018 2,183,728
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7.

(@)

Income taxes

Income tax expense

The tax on profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the Singapore standard rale of income tax as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax calculated at tax rate of 17% (2016: 17%)
Effects of:

- expenses not deductible for tax purposes

- income not subject to tax

- productivity and innovation credit scheme

- ulilisation of capital allowances

- utilisation of loss bff

- statutory stepped income exemption

- income tax rebate
Tax charge

Movement in current income tax liabilities

Beginning of financial year
Income tax paid

Tax expense

End of financial year

2017 2016
$ 6
1,075,487 265,676
182,833 45,165
24,185 19,457
. (37,138)
(11,195) =
(5,525) (8,318)
- (17,554)
(25,925) (1,210)
(15,000) (202)
149,373 202
2017 2018
$ 5
202 :
(4,038) :
149,373 202
145,537 202
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial yvear ended 31 December 2017

. Cash and cash equivalents
2017 2016
5 5
Cash at bank 1,988,756 1,587,744
Cash on hand 300 300
1,989,056 1,588,044
9. Trade and other receivables
2017 2016
$ $
Trade receivables 11,459,438 7,142,768
10. Other current assets
2017 2016
$ $
Daposits 113,086 125,083
Prepayments 114,318 165,359
227,404 200,442
11. Loan to related corporation

The loan to related corporation is unsecured, denominated in the Japanese Yen
and is due in full on 26 October 2021, The contractual interest rate on the loan at

balance sheet date is 2%.

162/214
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year endad 31 December 2017

12. Property, plant and equipment

Furmiture Cifice
Compulers  and ilinge  cguipmen)  Bencvalion Todal
5 3 § § 5
2m7
Cosl
Beginning of financial year 241,502 70,548 BOLSAT 82935 404,623
Addilions 29,354 2,725 1,038 - 33,117
End of financial year 270850 735,374 80,575 0z 935 H27,. 740
Accumiiaied depreciaton
Beginning of financial year 161,508 30,028 68,031 72512 362,188
Depreciation charge 44,560 5,696 12,350 12,086 75,674
End of financial year 208, 066 66 73T 80,381 84 6TH 437 857
Net book value
End of financial year 4,700 6,637 10,194 8 257 29,878
20186
Cost
Beginning of linancial year 170,647 63,8619 58,451 794870 382 587
Additions 70,555 7.030 21,086 13,085 112,036
End of financial year 241,502 70,549 &0,53T 97,038 494 623
Accumulaled deprecialion
Beginning of financial year 119,582 52,438 55,407 50,520 286,947
Depreciation charge L 7601 12,624 13,002 75,241
End of financial year 161,506 60,038 58,001 72612 362188
Net book value
End of financial year 749,996 10,610 21,506 20,323 132,435
13.  Trade and other payables
2017 2016
$ $
Trade payables 720,767 224 864
Accruals for operating expenses 11,040,968 7,763,717
Provision for unutilised leave 10,740 10,740

11,772,475 7,999,321

14, Share capital

The Company's share capital comprise 887,160 (2016: 887,160) fully paid-up
ordinary shares with no par value, amounting to a total of $887,160 (2016:
$887,160).

18
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

15. Dividends

At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 1 June 2017, a final dividend of
U5D105,000 (2016: USD105,000) was approved. These financial statements
reflected the final dividend paid in respect of the previous financial year, which is
accounted for in sharehalders' equily as an appropriation of retained profits in the
financial year ended 31 Decamber 2017.

16. Commitments

Cperating lease commitments — where the Company (s a lessee

The Company leases office premise under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities, are as

follows:
2017 2016
$ $

Mot later than one year 438,600 340,068
Between one and five years 731,000 -

1,169,600 340,068

17. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying
principles of financial risk management for the Company.

The finance personnel measure actual exposures against the limits set and prepare
regular reports for the review of the management team and the Board of Directors,
The information presented below is based on information received by the
managament team.

20
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

i7. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk
{i) Currency risk

The Company's business is exposed to the United States Dollar ("USD")
and Japanese Yen {"JPY"), Exposure to foreign currency risk is monitored
on an ongeing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable
level. The Company has not entered into any derivative foreign exchange
contacts for hedging or trading purpose.

The table below summarises the Company's financial assets and liabilities
which are denominated in SGD, USD and JPY:

SGD usD JPY Total
$ $ $ $

As at 31 December 2017

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 728,873 1,054,034 205,149 1,989,056
Trade and other receivables 95,775 6,108 B&Y 5,253,776 11,459,438
Deposits 113,086 - - 113,086
Loan to related corporation - - B4.917 B84.917

938,734 7,163,921 5,543,842 13,646,497
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (11,101,917) (543,748) {116,070y {11,761,735)
Het currency exposune (10,163,183} 6,620,173 5,427,772 1,884,762
SGD usoD JPY Total
£ $ $ $

As at 31 December 2016
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 778153 431,991 A77.800 1,588 044
Trade and ather receivables 128,089 3,964,411 3,050,268 7142768
Deposils 125,083 125,083

1,031,325 4396402 3,428,168 8055895
Financial liabilities
Trade and ather payables (7,0845,184) {137,808) {5,589) (7.988,581)

Met currency exposure (6,813,8509) 4,258 594 3,152, 579 BT, 314

At 31 December 2017, if the USD had strengthened/weakened by 3.8%
(2016: 0.6%) against the SGD with all other variables including tax rate
being held constant, the Company's profit after tax for the financial year
would have been $208,800 (2016: $21,208) higherflower, as a result of
currency translation gainsfiosses on the USD-denominated financial
instruments.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial yvear ended 31 December 2017

17.

(a)

(c)

Financial risk management [continued)
Market risk {continued)
] Currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, if the JPY had strengthened/weakened by 0.3%
(2016; 4.3%) against the SGD with all other variables inciuding tax rate
being held constant, the Company's profit after tax for the financial year
would have been $13,515 (2016: $122,152) higher/lower, as a result of
currency translation gainsflosses on the JPY-denominated financial
instruments,

(i} Interest rate risk

The Company has insignificant financial assets or liabilities that are exposed
lo interest rate risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company's major classes
of financial assets are bank deposits and trade and other receivables, and loan to
related corporation,

For trade receivables, the Company adopts the policy of dealing only with
customers of appropriate credit standing and history, and obtaining sufficient
security where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. For aother financial assets, the
Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial institutions and other
counterparties with high credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial assets is the
carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the balance
sheet. The Company's major classes of financial assets are bank deposits and
trade and other receivables, and loan to related corporation which are neither past
due nor impaired.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in setting its
financial obligations as and when they fall due.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and available
funding through its shareholder as and when required to meet its requirements.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2017

17.

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial risk management (continuad)
Liguidity risk {continued)

The table below analyses the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date, The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 Zand 5
1 year years years
3 5 $

At 31 December 2017
Trade and other payables 11,761,735 - -
At 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables 7.088.581 - -
Capital risk

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the relurn to
shareholders through the optimisation of the capital structure.

Management monitors capital based on the Base Capital Requirements required by
Singapore's Securities and Futures (Licensing and Conduct of Business)
Regulations. The Company is in compliance with all regulatory capital requirements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017,

Fair value measurements

The Company has no financial instrumants measured at fair value as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Except for cash and cash equivalents which are classified as Level 1, the
Company's financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 have been classified as Level 2, which
include trade and other receivables, deposits, loan to related corporation and trade
and other payables. These financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortised
cost and their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as at the balance
sheet date.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

17.

(f)

18.

19.

(a)

Financial risk management (cantinued)
Financial instruments by category

The aggregale carrying amounts of loans and receivables and financial liabilities al
amortised cost are as follows:

2017 2016
$ ¥
Loans and receivables 13,646,497 8,855,895
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 11,761,735 7,988,581

Immediate and ultimate holding corporation

The Company's immediate and ultimate holding corporation is Gordian Capital
Limited, incorporated in Cayman Islands.

Related party transactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the

following transactions took place between the Company and related parties at terms
agreed between the parties:

Incomea
2017 2016
$ $
Management fees 15,870,114 13,729 852
Performance fees 9,601,554 5,714,408

Balances with related parties at the balance sheet date are unsecured and
receivable within 12 months from balance sheest date and are disclosed in Notes 8
and 11. Payable to directors for reimbursements of expenses of $23 987 (2016:
$852) is included within 'Accruals for operating expenses’ in Mote 13.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

19.

(b)

20.

Related party transactions (continued)

Key management persannel compensation

2017 2016
$ 5
Directors’ fees, bonus and allowances 1,038,487 731,600

Interests in structured entities
The Company's interests in structured entities as at financial year end is as follows:

2017 2016
$ 5

Amounts due from funds managed by the Company 5,316,668 3,428,833

The Company's maximum exposure to losses related to the funds is represented
by amounts due from the funds as disclosed in the table above.

The Company has interests in structured erntities as a result of contractual
arrangements arising from its principal activity, the management of assets on behalf
of its clients. These structured entities may include a variety of investment vehicles
including investment funds. These vehicles may be established or domiciled in
onshore and offshore jurisdictions.

The structured entities are financed by the purchase of redeemable participating
shares or units by investors, depending upon the lype of structured entity, which
may include the Company should it invest in the funds that it manages.

The Company earns a management fee from its structured entities, which is
typically based on a percentage of the relevant net asset value and, where
contractually agreed, a performance fee, based on the oulperformance of the
returns relative to an agreed benchmark. The objective of the structured entities is
to generate capital appreciation andfor investmeant incoma,

The Company has interests in 25 (2016: 19) structured entities as at the end of the
reporting period, arising through its principal activity of management of assets on
behalf of investors. The net asset of the structured entities is approximately $1,585
million (2016: $847 million).
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2017

21,

Mew or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Below are the mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that have been published, and are relevant for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and which the Company has not early
adopted:

{a) FRS 109 Financial instruments (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018)

FRS 109 replaces FRS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and its relevant interpretations.

FRS 109 retains the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair
value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and fair value through
Profit or Loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity's business
model and the contractual cash flow characteristice of the financial asset.
Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with an irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in OCI (FVOCI). Gains and losses realised on the sale
of such financial assets at FVOCI are not transferred to profit or loss on sale
but reclassified from the FVOCI reserve to retained earnings.

Under FRS 108, there are no changes to the classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities except for the recognition
of fair value changes arising from changes in own credit risk. For liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, such changes are recognised
in OCI.

FRS 109 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’
lo be the same as the one management uses for risk management
purposes.

There is also now a new expected credit losses impairment model that
replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in FRS 39, It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
fair value through OCI, contract assets under FRS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of FRS 108 and plans fo
adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017

21.  New or revised accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

(b FRS 115 Rewvenue from contfracts with cusfomers (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

FRES 115 replaces FRS 11 Construction contracts, FRS 18 Revenue, and
related interpretations.

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or
service. A customer obtains control when it has the ability to direct the use
of and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The core principle of
FR3 115 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
cansidaration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that
core principle by applying the following steps:

= Step 1: ldentify the contract{s) with a customer

« Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the contract

= Step 3. Determine the transaction price

= Slep 4. Allocate the transaclion price to the performance obligations in the
contract

» Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

FRS 115 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements that will
result in an entity providing users of financial statements with
comprehensive information about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with
customers.

Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of FRS 115 and plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year endad 31 December 2017

21.

23,

New or revised accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

(c) FRS 116 Leases (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2019)

FRS 116 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leasss is removed.

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not change
significantly.

Some of the Company's commitments may be covered by the exception for
short-term and low-value leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangemeants that will not qualify as leases under FRS 116.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation.

The Company has yet to determine to what extent the commitments as at
31 December 2017 will result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments and how this will affect the Company's profit and
classification of cash flows.

Comparatives

Where necessary, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
changes in presentation in current year,

Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a

resolution of the Board of Directors of Gordian Capital Singapore Private Limited on
25 May 2018.
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2018 100 10,935

2010 16

Intertrust

Portcullis Trust Singapore Ltd

2018 100 82

199806167W

30

(Nomura International plc)

2018 100
594,493

100
Prudential Regulation Authority(PRA) Financial
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Conduct Authority (FCA)

Teneo Partners

2018 8,450
Teneo Partners 2009 14
2010 2010 2011
2011
2018 10
2018 1,400

2006 12

176/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Teneo Partners
Teneo Partners

1771214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.1
1993

1.2
1960

1.3 2017 10 11,000
2,800

1.4
CIMA
CIMA

1.5 CFATF
CFATF 1992
1988

FATF
40

2.1 1993

CIMA

2.2

2.3 4(4)
15

178/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4(4) CINA
3.1
CINA
MF3 4,268
CIMA
3.2
3.2
MF2 MF2A CIMA
CIMA
4,268
CINA
3.3 4 3
@

() 100,000

)

)

A 100,000
B
(V) ) )
CINA 4,268
)
CINA MF4

3,049

179/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.1

4.2 CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

@
(b)

©
(D
)

4.3
CIMA
4.4 2006 12 27 2006
CIMA CIMA

CIMA CIMA

CIMA

5.1

5.2

CIMA 2
48

180/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5.3 3.2
CIMA
5.4 CIMA

CIMA

4(3) 3.3

4(4) 2.3

5.5 CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
@

(b)

©

(D
©)

5.6 CIMA

5.7 CIMA

5.8 50
24,390 50
30,488 8,536
50
36,585 50
42,682 8,536

6.1

181/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
)
©) /
(D
)
)
()
)
)
)
e
®
@
W)
Q)
@
&
O] 30

20 10

(m

182/214



6.2

6.3

Q)

@

(b)

©

(D)

O

Q)

@

Q)
(M)

@

(b)

©

(D

150

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

1925

50

1907

183/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

e

Q)

@

Q)

() 50

@

)

6.4
(@) LLC 2016
2016 LLC
LLC
(b) LLC
LLC LLC LLC

(c) LLC LLC
LLC
24
(d) LLC LLC

) LLC LLC LLC

184/214



(f) LLC

)

(9) LLC

(h) LLC

(i) LLC

@

(k) LLC

(1) LLC

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(i) LLC

LLC

LLC
LLC
LLC

LLC
LLC
LLC

LLC
LLC

LLC
LLC

CIMA

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

7.3

CIMA

500

CIMA CIMA
CIMA

7.3 10

CIMA
10

185/214



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14
7.15

CIMA

CIMA

@
(b)

©

()
e

7.7
CIMA

(a) CINA
()
©
(d) CINA

7.7
@ 4@

(b)
©
(D)

©)
CIMA

CIMA

7.9(d)

7.9(e)

7.13
7.9(d)

(b)

7.9

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

7.9

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CINA
4(3) 4(3)

CIMA

CIMA

7.9(e)
CIMA CIMA

7.9(e)

186/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(@) CIMA CINA CINA
() CINA
CIMA
CINA
(c) 7.15(h) CIMA
CIMA
7.16  7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15
CINA CINA

7.17 7.15 CIMA

(a) CINA

(b) 94(4)

©

(D)

) CINA 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
7.18 CIMA  7.17

7.9
7.19 CIMA  7.9(3)
7.20 7.17(c)
7.21 CINA CINA
4
V) 4(3) 4(3)
CINA

8.1 CINA CINA

CIMA
8.2 8.1

500
8.3
CINA CINA CINA
CIMA

10

187/214



8.5 8.3

8.6 CIMA

@
(b)
8.7 CINA

8.8 CIMA

@

(b)

©

(D)
()

Q)

8.9 CIMA
CIMA

@

o/

~AAAAA A
~ N

(b) CINA
(c) CINA

(d) CIMA
8.10 8.8
@

8.8

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
10
CIMA
8.10
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

188/214



(b)

©
()
)

8.11 CIMA 8.10

8.12  8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CIMA

8.13  8.10(e)

8.14 8.13

8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a) CINA

() CIMA

CINA
(c) 8.15(b)
CIMA

8.10(d)

8.15

8.16
@
(b)

8.10(e)

8.17

(@) CIVA
()
(c) CIVA 8.10(d)

8.18 CIMA 8.16

8.19 CIMA

(a) CINA

(b)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
8.15 CIMA
94(4)
8.10(e)
CIMA
CIMA

189/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

8.20 CIMA
8.10

8.21
CIMA

9.1 CIMA CIMA

@

)

©

(D)
9.2 9.1(a) 9.1(d)

CINA

9.3  CINA

(@) 9.1(a) 9.1(d)

)

©
9.4 CINA

CIMA

@

(b)

©

(D)

()

CIMA

9.5 CIMA CIMA CIMA

9.6 CIMA

20

10 CIMA
10.1 CIMA

@) CINA

190/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)
©
CIMA

() CINA

(b)

©

() CIMA

CIMA

©)

11 /
11.1

11.2

11.3 1996
€Y 14D

14(2)

(b)

11.4
€))

~
~

191/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)
©
()]
)
11.5
(@
()
11.6
12 /
12.1 257
(@
()
©
12.2 247 248
@
(b)

10

192/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©
12.3 CIDL 3(1)
CIDL 3(1)(a) 3(0) (i)
13
13.1
CIMA
7.17(b) 8.17(b)
13.2
CIMA
7.17(c)
13.3
CINA 7.17
(d)
13.4
6.1(1) 6.2(9) 6.3(i)
14 2007
14.1 2007
2012
4 (L@

2003 11 17

193/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
14.2 CIMA CIMA
14.3
14.4
14.5
14.6 20
CIMA
CIMA
14.7
@) 13.1

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

(b)

194/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

©
CINA
(@
CINA
14.8
@

CIMA

CIMA

(b)

©

(D

14.9
@

CIMA

() CIMA

CIMA

195/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©) 21

(d)

©) 21 (4

10

Q)
12

)
(®)

)

)
50

)

15

)

196/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Q) 21 (®)

50

@ 21 (6) 21 (4) 21 (5)

()
CINA

14.10
() Vi

CIMA

()

(©) 26
14.11

@

CIMA
CIMA

(b)

©

(D)

197/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14.12
@) 4 (D) 4 (6) CINA

CIMA

) 37

~NAAN A A
~

x ) (x ) xx )

x )

x )
)

198/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

xx )

x )

Ox )
G

(B®)
(xxiv)

G

(B)
©

199/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
23 25 13
EDINET
WEB http://disclosure.edinet-fsa.go. jp/
@
37
€)

4

200/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

12 31

)

75

CR-53325

IFRS

201/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 11

()

25
1933

()

202/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 12 19

2016

902

203/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 12
31

2017 12 31

2018 29

Report of Independent Auditors

204/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Trustee
Shin-Ka Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shin-Ka Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the condensed schedule
of investments, as of December 31, 2017, and the related statements of operations, changes
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor®s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor”s
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity®s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Shin-Ka Fund at December 31, 2017, and the results of

its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
March 29, 2018

205/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

206/214



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 12
31

2016 12 31

2017 31

Report of Independent Auditors

207/214



EDINETOOOO
0000000000 DO000D000O00D0bDO000DOoOdnoo(Ess9es)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Trustee
Shin-Ka Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shin-Ka Fund (the

“ Fund” ), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the
condensed schedule of investments, as of December 31, 2016, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor®s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor®™s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity"s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity"s internal
control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Shin-Ka Fund at December 31, 2016,
and the results of its operations, changes iIn its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.
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Ernst & Young Ltd.
March 31, 2017
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2018 25

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Gordian Capital Singapore Private Limited
(the “ Company” ) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
Chapter 50 (the “ Act” ) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“ FRSS” ) so as to give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that
date.
What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 December 2017;

the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

the statement of changes in equity for the financial year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“ SSAs” ). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
(“ ACRA Code” ) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors®
Statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly
authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors® responsibilities include overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.
Auditor®™s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor™s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants

Singapore, 25 May 2018

)
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